

Section I
**Notice of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking**

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
6A-10.024 Articulation Between and Among
 Universities, Florida Colleges, and School
 Districts

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rule implements the statewide articulated acceleration mechanisms of Section 1007.27, Florida Statutes, which facilitates a variety of accelerations mechanisms that are available to secondary and postsecondary students. The purpose of this development is to incorporate the updated 2017-2018 Credit-by-Examination Equivalencies list as approved by the Articulation Coordinating Committee.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Articulation Coordinating Committee’s Credit-by-Examination Equivalencies list.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 1001.02(2)(n), 1007.23(1), 1007.25, 1007.27, FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 1001.64(8)(a), 1007.01(2), 1007.23, 1007.25, 1007.27, FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT, IF AVAILABLE, IS: Todd Clark, Director, Office of Articulation, Todd.clark@fldoe.org or (850)245-0764. To request a rule development workshop, please contact: Cathy Schroeder, Director, Office of Executive Management, Department of Education, (850)245-9661 or e-mail cathy.schroeder@fldoe.org or go to <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Available at <https://app1.fldoe.org/rules/default.aspx>.

Section II
Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Division of Child Support Enforcement

RULE NOS.:	RULE TITLES:
12E-1.012	Consumer Reporting Agencies
12E-1.023	Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration
12E-1.030	Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations
12E-1.036	Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations
12E-1.037	Notification to Withhold Support from Reemployment Assistance
12E-1.039	Request for Services
12E-1.040	Intergovernmental Forms

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendment of Rule 12E-1.012, F.A.C. (Consumer Reporting Agencies) is to update the criteria for reporting past-due support to consumer reporting agencies by changing the delinquent support criterion and adding new criteria, and to adjust the time allowed for informal reviews, including an additional five days for mailing.

The effect of the amendment is to amend the criteria for reporting past-due support to consumer reporting agencies, to adjust the delinquent support amount criterion, add new criteria, and to clarify the time frame associated with the informal review process.

The purpose of the proposed amendment of Rule 12E-1.023, F.A.C. (Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration), is to provide additional criteria for initiating an action to suspend a parent’s driver license, including a delinquent support criterion, and to clarify the conditions when the Program terminates a pending suspension action or reinstates a suspended driver license.

The effect of the amendment is to add new criteria for initiating license suspensions, including a delinquent support amount criterion, and to clarify the license reinstatement process. The rule specifies the suspension criteria and reinstatement conditions that apply to suspending a license for non-payment of support, and distinguishes them from the suspension criteria and reinstatement conditions that apply when the license suspension or reinstatement is for failure to comply with a subpoena or order relating to a paternity or support proceeding.

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.030, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations), is to inform the public of how the Department establishes administrative support orders.

The effect of creating the proposed rule is to provide the public with the steps used by the Department when it seeks to administratively establish a child support child support obligations as well as the rights and responsibilities of the parties involved in an administrative support obligation.

The purpose of the proposed amendment to Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations), is to align the rule with Rule 12E-1.030 (Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations). The amendment updates the rule for how the alleged father may opt-out of the administrative process, how the Department calculates support obligations for support orders, and updates information about how the Department determines cooperation for the mother.

The effect of the amendment is to clarify the alleged father's right to opt-out of the administrative process, to clarify how the Department determines support obligations, and to clarify what actions constitute cooperation with this process.

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.037, F.A.C. (Notification to Withhold Support from Reemployment Assistance), is to describe the process used to implement the requirement in section 443.051, Florida Statutes, to notify the Department of Economic Opportunity to withhold support payments from the reemployment assistance (formerly known as unemployment compensation) of parents who owe support obligations.

The effect of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.037, F.A.C., is to define the term "support obligations" as used in the rule, describe how the Department uses data received from the Department of Economic Opportunity, provide a limit for the amount to be withheld from a parent's reemployment assistance, provide for refunding withheld amounts that exceed a parent's total support obligation, provide for adjusting future withholdings to avoid excess withholding, and describe how the Department of Revenue allocates a withheld amount among cases when a parent who owes support has more than one case with a support obligation.

The purpose of proposed Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C. (Request for Services), is to establish standards for applications and public assistance referrals for Title IV-D services.

The effect of the proposed rule is to define who is eligible to receive services, how to apply for services and the information that must be provided. The proposed rule also addresses how applications and public assistance referrals for child support services are reviewed and processed by the Child Support Program.

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C. (Intergovernmental Forms), is to incorporate by reference federally approved forms General Testimony (CS-IS21) and the Affidavit in Support of Establishing Paternity (CS-IS26) used in intergovernmental cases.

The effect of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C., is to provide the forms the department will use to in intergovernmental cases. The General Testimony (CS-IS21) form will be used to obtain a sworn statement about the information and facts of the case from a person seeking establishment of paternity, support, or paternity and support. The Affidavit in Support of Establishing Paternity (CS-IS26) form will be used to obtain a paternity affidavit from a person seeking establishment of paternity or paternity and support.

SUMMARY: The proposed amendment to Rule 12E-1.012, F.A.C. (Consumer Reporting Agencies), substantially rewords the rule which establishes how the Department initiates an action to report a parent's past-due support to consumer reporting agencies.

The proposed amendment to Rule 12E-1.023, F.A.C. (Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration), substantially rewords the rule which establishes how the Department initiates suspension and reinstatement of driver's licenses and vehicle registrations related to nonpayment of child support, and failure to comply with a subpoena or order in a paternity or support proceeding.

The proposed creation of Rule 12E-1.030, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations), establishes how the Department administratively establishes child support obligations when it is providing services under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act.

The proposed amendment to Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C. (Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations), is to align the rule with Rule 12E-1.030 (Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations).

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.037, F.A.C. (Notification to Withhold Support from Reemployment Assistance), is to describe the process used to implement the requirement in section 443.051, Florida Statutes, to notify the Department of Economic Opportunity to withhold support payments from the reemployment assistance (formerly known as unemployment compensation) of parents who owe support obligations.

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C. (Request for Services), is to establish standards for applications and public assistance referrals for Title IV-D services.

The purpose of creating proposed Rule 12E-1.040, F.A.C. (Intergovernmental Forms), is to incorporate by reference federally approved forms General Testimony (CS-IS21) and the Affidavit in Support of Establishing Paternity (CS-IS26) used in intergovernmental cases.

The proposed rules and amendments adopt, by reference, technical and administrative changes to forms currently used to administer child support services, as well as promulgate several forms for the first time.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: 1) no requirement for the Statement of Economic Regulatory Costs (SERC) was triggered under Section 120.541(1), F.S.; and 2) based on past experiences regarding rules of this nature, the adverse impact or regulatory cost, if any, do not exceed nor would exceed any one of the economic analysis criteria in a SERC, as set forth in Section 120.541(2)(a), F.S.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 61.1354(5), 61.14(1)(c), 120.54(6), 409.2557, 409.2557(3)(h), 409.2557(3)(i) 409.2557(3)(p), 409.256(17), 409.2563(7)(e), 409.2563(16) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 61.1354, 322.058, 409.256, 409.2563, 409.2567, 443.051 FS., 45 CFR 303.7(a)(4)

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

DATE AND TIME: JUNE 22, 2017, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: 2450 SHUMARD OAK BLVD, TALLAHASSEE, FL, BUILDING 2, ROOM 3503

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Bobby York at (850)617-8037. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Bobby York at (850) 617-8037

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

Substantial rewording of Rule 12E-1.012 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.

12E-1.012 Consumer Reporting Agencies.

(1) Definitions. As used in this rule:

(a) "Consumer Reporting Agency," also referred to as a "credit bureau" or a "credit reporting agency," means a person who, for monetary fees, dues, or on a cooperative nonprofit basis, regularly engages in whole or in part in the practice of assembling or evaluating consumer credit information or other information on consumers for the purpose of furnishing consumer reports to third parties, and who uses any means or facility of interstate commerce for the purpose of preparing or furnishing consumer reports.

(b) "Delinquency" means the total amount of support that has come due and is unpaid pursuant to the payment schedule set forth in the support order as that term is defined by s. 61.046(21), F. S.

(c) "Overdue Support" means the amount of a delinquency, arrearage, or both, that is owed under a support order as that term is defined by s. 61.046(21), F. S.

(2) Reporting Overdue Support upon a Request from a Consumer Reporting Agency.

(a) If a consumer reporting agency requests information from the Department pursuant to section 61.1354(1), F.S., concerning an obligor who has not been reported by the Department pursuant to subsection (3) of this rule, the Department shall, after complying with subsection (4) of this rule, provide the consumer reporting agency with the obligor's name, social security number, and the amount of overdue support he or she owes, if any.

(b) If a consumer reporting agency or lending institution requests the Department to verify the amount of overdue support owed by an obligor who has been reported by the Department pursuant to subsection (3) of this rule, the Department shall provide the information to the consumer reporting agency or lending institution. A request from a lending institution must be accompanied by a written authorization signed by the obligor authorizing the Department to disclose the information.

(3) Periodic Reporting to Consumer Reporting Agencies.

(a) The initial report concerning an obligor may not be released until the Department has complied with the notice and hearing requirements in subsection (4) of this rule. Subsequent reports providing updated amounts owed by an obligor are released by the Department without further notice to the obligor.

(b) The Department initiates reporting to consumer reporting agencies if the case meets all the following criteria, unless any of the factors listed in paragraph (3)(c) are present:

1. The Department has a valid mailing or residential address for the obligor;

2. The delinquency in the case is:

a. Equal to or greater than \$400, or

b. Greater than \$100 and less than \$400 and:

i. For a weekly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 10 days or longer;

ii. For a bi-weekly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 17 days or longer;

iii. For a semi-monthly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 18 days or longer;

iv. For a monthly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 34 days or longer;

v. For a quarterly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 95 days or longer;

vi. For a semi-annual support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 186 days or longer;

vii. For an annual support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 368 days or longer;

viii. For a one-time support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 34 days or longer.

3. The Department has a valid social security number for the obligor;

4. Overdue support in the case equals or exceeds two times the monthly support obligation, if any.

(c) The Department may not initiate reporting to consumer reporting agencies in a case if any of the following factors are present:

1. The obligor receives temporary cash assistance;

2. The obligor receives Supplemental Security Income benefits;

3. The obligor is complying with a written agreement he or she entered with the Department;

4. The obligor receives reemployment assistance (formerly known as unemployment compensation);

5. The Department has initiated an income deduction notice to the current employer or other income provider during the employer's or income provider's most recent pay frequency (e.g., weekly, monthly), if known, or during the support order obligation frequency (e.g., weekly, monthly);

6. The Department has placed an override on reporting overdue support to consumer reporting agencies (for example, when a court has prohibited using the action on a specific case);

7. The Department has any of the following compliance actions pending in the case:

a. A past-due notice sent to the obligor;

b. An appointment letter sent to the obligor;

c. An action to suspend the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s);

d. An action to suspend the obligor's business, professional, occupational, or recreational license or certification;

e. A legal action against the obligor for contempt of court or to establish a repayment on past-due support;

f. An action to place a lien on the obligor's motor vehicle(s) or vessel(s);

g. A referral of the obligor's case to another state's Title IV-D agency to take compliance action against the obligor;

8. The obligor is paying support pursuant to an income deduction notice; or

9. The obligor is incarcerated.

(d)1. The Department may not release the initial report concerning an obligor's overdue support if, after the obligor receives notice pursuant to subsection (4), the Department and the obligor enter into a written agreement establishing a payment plan in accordance with Rule 12E-1.027, F.A.C.

2. If the obligor does not comply with the written agreement, the Department shall release the initial report and subsequent periodic reports without further notice to the obligor, which must be stated in the written agreement.

3. The Department may not release the initial report for as long as the obligor complies with the written agreement.

(4) Notice and Right to Hearing.

(a) Before releasing a report or providing information concerning an obligor under this section the Department shall send the obligor by regular mail to his or her last known address a Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies, Form CS-EF32, incorporated herein by reference, effective xx/xx (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____). The notice must inform the obligor that:

1. The Department will report the amount of overdue support to the consumer reporting agencies;

2. The Department will report an update of the overdue support amount each month;

3. Reporting overdue support to consumer reporting agencies may affect the obligor's ability to obtain credit;

4. The obligor may avoid the initial report by paying the full amount of the overdue support within 20 days after the date the notice is mailed;

5. The obligor may request the Department to enter into a written agreement that establishes a payment plan to avoid reporting the overdue support; and

6. By requesting an informal review, the obligor may contest the information proposed to be released if the overdue support amount is incorrect or the obligor is not the individual obligated to pay support.

(b) An obligor may contest the Department's reporting of overdue support to consumer reporting agencies. To contest:

1. The obligor must submit a written request for informal review to the Department at the address specified in the Notice of Intent to Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies (CS-EF32) within 20 calendar days after the mailing date of the notice.

2. If a written request for informal review is received timely, the Department shall conduct the informal review to determine whether reporting to consumer reporting agencies is appropriate. The Department shall conclude its review within 20 days after receiving the request.

3. When the review is concluded, the Department shall hand-deliver or send the obligor by regular mail a Notice of Decision Concerning Report to Consumer Reporting Agencies, Form CS-EF62, incorporated herein by reference, effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->

[_____](http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-)). The notice must inform the obligor whether the Department intends to report the obligor's overdue support amount to the consumer reporting agencies. The notice must inform the obligor of the right under Chapter 120, F.S., to file a petition for administrative hearing to contest the accuracy of the information to be reported.

4. The obligor may contest the notice of decision by filing a petition for administrative hearing with the Department at the address provided in the notice within 15 days after receipt of the notice of decision. A petition is filed when it is received by the Department, not when it is mailed. If the obligor contests the notice of decision by filing a timely petition, the Department may not report information to consumer reporting agencies until the obligor withdraws the petition, the obligor consents, or a final order is entered that authorizes the release of the information.

(5) Modifying Previous Reports to Consumer Reporting Agencies. The Department shall notify consumer reporting agencies to remove or modify the amount of overdue support from the obligor's consumer report if the Department determines the amount reported by the Department is incorrect or has been paid in full.

(6) Department Requests for Consumer Reports. The Department is authorized to request consumer reports from consumer reporting agencies pursuant to sections 61.1354(3) and (4), F.S. Before the Department submits a request for a consumer report to a consumer reporting agency, the Department shall certify one-time to the consumer reporting agency that every subsequent request for a consumer report from that agency will meet the requirements set forth in section 61.1354(3), F.S. When the Department requests a consumer report, the Department shall provide the Notice of Intent to Request Credit Report, Form CS-EF15, incorporated

herein by reference, effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> _____), by certified mail to the individual's last known address at least 15 days prior to transmitting the request to the consumer reporting agency.

Rulemaking Specific—Authority 61.1354(5), 409.2557 FS. Law Implemented 61.1354 FS. History—New 6-17-92, Amended 7-20-94, Formerly 10C-25.009, Amended 10-22-00, 10-30-06, _____.

Substantial rewording of Rule 12E-1.023 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.

12E-1.023 Suspension of Driver License; Suspension of Motor Vehicle Registration.

(1) Definition. For purposes of this rule "delinquency" means the total amount of support that has come due and is unpaid pursuant to the payment schedule set forth in the support order.

(2) Suspension Criteria.

(a) The Department is authorized pursuant to section 61.13016, F.S., to initiate a proceeding for the suspension of an obligor's driver license and the registration of all motor vehicles solely owned by the obligor when:

1. The obligor is 15 days delinquent in making a support payment; or

2. The obligor fails to comply with a subpoena, order to appear, order to show cause, or

similar order relating to paternity or support proceedings.

(b) The Department shall initiate a proceeding to suspend the driver license and the registration of all motor vehicles solely owned by the obligor for non-payment of support in an obligor's case if the criteria in (2)(a)1. and the following criteria are met, unless any of the factors listed in paragraph (2)(c) are present:

1. The Department has a valid mailing or residential address for the obligor;

2. The delinquency in the case is:

a. Equal to or greater than \$400, or

b. Greater than \$100 and less than \$400 and:

i. For a weekly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 10 days or longer;

ii. For a bi-weekly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 17 days or longer;

iii. For a semi-monthly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 18 days or longer;

iv. For a monthly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 34 days or longer;

v. For a quarterly support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 95 days or longer;

vi. For a semi-annual support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 186 days or longer;

vii. For an annual support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 368 days or longer;

viii. For a one-time support obligation, the Department has not received and posted a payment in the past 34 days or longer;

(c) The Department may not initiate a proceeding to suspend an obligor's driver license or motor vehicle registration for non-payment of support if any of the following factors are present:

1. The obligor receives temporary cash assistance;

2. The obligor receives Supplemental Security Income benefits;

3. The obligor is complying with a written agreement the obligor entered with the Department;

4. The obligor receives reemployment assistance (formerly known as unemployment compensation);

5. The Department has initiated an income deduction notice to an employer or other payor of income during the employer's or payor's most recent pay frequency (e.g., weekly, monthly), if known, or during the support order obligation frequency (e.g., weekly, monthly);

6. The obligor is paying support pursuant to an income deduction notice;

7. The Department has placed an override on driver license suspension actions in the case, for example, when a court has prohibited driver license suspension in the case;

8. The Department has any of the following compliance actions pending in the case:

a. A past-due notice sent to the obligor;

b. An appointment letter sent to the obligor;

c. An action to report the obligor's overdue support balance to consumer reporting agencies;

d. An action to suspend the obligor's business, professional, occupational, or recreational license or certification;

e. A legal action against the obligor for contempt of court or to establish a repayment on past-due support;

f. An action to place a lien on the obligor's motor vehicle(s) or vessel(s);

g. A referral of the obligor's case to another state's Title IV-D agency to take compliance actions against the obligor;

9. The obligor is disabled and incapable of self-support;

10. The obligor receives benefits under the federal Social Security Disability Insurance program; or

11. The obligor is making payments in accordance with a confirmed bankruptcy plan under Chapter 11, 12, or 13 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code;

(3) Notice to Obligor of Intent to Suspend Driver License; Notice to Suspend Motor Vehicle Registration.

(a) In accordance with section 61.13016(1), F.S., the Department shall send to the obligor by regular mail a Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver License and Motor Vehicle Registration(s), Form CS-EF55, incorporated herein by reference, effective xx/xx

http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____). Notice shall be mailed to the obligor's address of record with the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles.

(b) In addition to the notice required by (3)(a), if the Department has information that using another address is more likely to result in actual notice to the obligor, the Department shall mail the notice to the obligor at that address.

(c) Service of the notice is complete upon mailing.

(4) Termination of Driver License Suspension Process; Termination of Motor Vehicle Registration Suspension Process. After the Department has provided notice to the obligor of its intent to suspend the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s), but before the Department has notified the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to suspend, the Department shall terminate a pending suspension action if the obligor satisfies any of the conditions in subsection 61.13016(3), Florida Statutes. The Department shall also terminate a pending suspension action as follows:

(a) If the suspension action in a case was initiated due to non-payment of support, the Department will terminate the action when:

1. The Department closes the case;

2. An income deduction payment is received:

a. During the past seven days for a weekly obligation;

b. During the past 14 days for a bi-weekly obligation;

c. During the past 15 days for a semi-monthly obligation;

d. During the past 31 days for a monthly obligation;

e. During the past 92 days for a quarterly obligation;

f. During the past 183 days for a semi-annual obligation;

g. During the past 365 days for an annual obligation;

(b) If the suspension action in a case was initiated due to a failure to comply with a subpoena, order to appear, order to show cause, order to appear for genetic testing, or similar order, the Department shall terminate the action when:

1. The Department closes the case; or

2. A court orders the Department to terminate the action.

(5) Written Agreements for Payment of Past-Due Support.

(a) Rule 12E-1.027, F.A.C., governs the requirements and procedures for entering into a written agreement with the obligor for payment of past-due support.

(b) If the obligor defaults on a payment required by the written agreement, the Department shall, without further notice to the obligor, notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to suspend the obligor's license and registration(s), as provided by the terms of the written agreement, unless one of the circumstances listed in subsection (4)(a) exists.

(6) The Department shall notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to suspend the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s) by electronic interface, fax or other means such as hand-delivery or U.S. mail.

(7) Reinstatement of the Driver License; Reinstatement of Motor Vehicle Registration. The Department shall notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to reinstate an obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s) in a case as follows:

(a) If the suspension action in a case is initiated due to non-payment of support, the Department shall notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to reinstate the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s) when:

1. The Department closes the case;
2. An income deduction payment is received;
3. The obligor pays the delinquency in full;
4. The obligor enters into a written agreement with the Department;
5. The obligor demonstrates that he or she receives reemployment assistance;
6. The obligor demonstrates that he or she is disabled and incapable of self-support;
7. The obligor receives Supplemental Security Income benefits;
8. The obligor receives benefits under the federal Social Security Disability Insurance program;
9. The obligor receives temporary cash assistance;
10. The obligor is making payments in accordance with a confirmed bankruptcy plan under Chapter 11, 12, or 13 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code;
11. A court orders the reinstatement of the license and motor vehicle registration; or
12. The Department requests the suspension in error.

(b) If the suspension action in a case was initiated due to a failure to comply with a subpoena, order to appear, order to show cause, order to appear for genetic testing, or similar order, the Department shall notify the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to reinstate the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s) when:

1. The obligor complies with the subpoena or order;
2. A court orders the reinstatement of the license and motor vehicle registration;

3. The Department requests the suspension in error; or

4. The Department closes the case.

(8) Procedure for Reinstatement. When the Department notifies the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to reinstate the driver license and motor vehicle registration, the Department shall also notify the obligor that the Department is no longer pursuing suspension action, and the obligor's driver license and motor vehicle registration(s) is eligible for reinstatement upon the obligor paying applicable fees owed to the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. The Department uses Form CS-EF57, Driver License/Vehicle Registration Reinstatement Notice, to notify obligors their driver license and motor vehicle registration are eligible for reinstatement. Form CS-EF57, Driver License/Vehicle Registration Reinstatement Notice, (Effective XX/XX)

(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->), is hereby incorporated by reference in this rule. Rulemaking Specific Authority 409.2557(3)(i) FS. Law Implemented 61.13016, 322.058 FS History—New 7-20-94, Formerly 10C-25.020, Amended 3-6-02, _____.

12E-1.030 - Administrative Establishment of Child Support Obligations.

(1) Introduction. Section 409.2563, F.S., authorizes the Department to administratively establish child support obligations when it is providing services under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act.

(2) Definitions. For purposes of this rule:

(a) "Address of record" means the address to which all administrative proposed orders, final orders, and other notices are mailed. The address of record is established as the active mailing or residential address maintained for the party by the Department that is listed on the initial notice that is served on the respondent. If the party provides a new address in writing after service of the initial notice, the new address is designated the address of record and all subsequent documents associated with the administrative proceeding action will be mailed to that address.

(b) "Administrative Support Order", as defined by section 409.2563(1)(a) F.S., is also referred to as "Final Administrative Support Order", or "Final Order" and may include payment of noncovered medical expenses.

(c) "Amended Proposed Administrative Support Order" or "Amended Proposed Order" is a modified Proposed Order issued by the Department to correct an error or reflect new information that changes the terms of the original or subsequent Proposed Order.

(d) "Emancipated" means the status of a minor child who has become an adult on reaching 18 years of age, by order of the court, by marriage, or by other means provided by law.

(e) “Income deduction order” means an administrative final order rendered by the Department directing an employer or other payor of income to deduct support payments from the income of a parent who is ordered to pay support.

(f) “Legal services provider” means a program attorney as defined in section 409.2554(9), F.S.

(g) “Long-arm jurisdiction” refers to the conditions listed in sections 48.193(1)(a) and 88.2011, Florida Statutes, that allow the Department to assert personal jurisdiction over a respondent who does not reside in Florida.

(h) “Notice of Proceeding to Establish an Administrative Support Order” or “Initial Notice” means the notice served on the respondent that states the Department has started a proceeding to establish an administrative support order.

(i) “Petitioner” or “petitioning parent” means the parent or caregiver with whom the child resides.

(j) “Public assistance” means temporary cash assistance, food assistance, Medicaid, or any combination thereof.

(k) “Respondent” means the parent from whom the Department is seeking support.

(3) Case Selection Criteria.

(a) As allowed by section 409.2563 (2)(c), F.S., the Department is authorized to establish a support obligation administratively.

(b) The Department does not establish an administrative support obligation when:

1. The child is in foster care;
2. There is a court order of support for a payee with whom the child no longer resides;
3. The Department does not have an active residential or mailing address for the respondent;
4. There is a court order that only addresses health care insurance or noncovered medical expenses;
5. There is a court order that establishes an ongoing support obligation, a retroactive support amount, or reserves jurisdiction to establish a support obligation;
6. In accordance with section 409.2579(4) F.S., the Department has reason to believe that the disclosure of information on the whereabouts of one party or the child to another person may result in physical or emotional harm to the party or the child.

7. Either parent is a minor; or

8. The respondent does not reside in Florida and long-arm jurisdiction is not applicable.

(4) Obtaining Cooperation from the Petitioner.

(a) If a case is eligible for establishment of an administrative support order the Department must obtain cooperation from the petitioner before serving notice on the respondent. To obtain cooperation, the Department mails the petitioner Form CS-ES96, Request for Information, incorporated herein by reference, effective xx/xx

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____); the Financial Affidavit Administrative Proceeding (CS-OA11); and the Parent Information Form (CS-OA12). Forms CS-OA11 and CS-OA12 are incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C. The petitioner has 20 days after the mailing date of the forms to complete and return them.

(b) If the petitioner returns the forms timely, the Department shall proceed to serve the respondent with an Initial Notice as described in subsection (5) below.

(c) If the forms are not returned timely, the Department shall initiate case closure for petitioners not receiving public assistance. For petitioners receiving Medicaid or food assistance, the Department shall report noncooperation to the Department of Children and Families as required by section 409.2572 F.S. and initiate case closure. If the petitioner is receiving temporary cash assistance for the child, the Department shall prepare a financial affidavit for the petitioner as authorized by section 61.30(15) F.S.

(5) Initial Notice.

(a) The Department uses Form CS-OA01, Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.), to inform the respondent that the Department has initiated an administrative proceeding to establish a support obligation. This notice is referred to as the “Initial Notice”.

1. Along with the Initial Notice, the Department shall provide the respondent with the following documents:

a. Financial Affidavit Administrative Support Proceeding (CS-OA11); and

b. Parent Information Form Administrative Support Proceeding (CS-OA12).

2. The Department shall mail the petitioner a copy of the Initial Notice provided to the respondent, along with Form CS-OA06, Notice to Parent or Caregiver of Administrative Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.).

(b) The Department is authorized to serve the Initial Notice as provided by section 409.2563(4), F.S. The Department considers the Initial Notice to be properly served if:

1. Someone other than the respondent signs the certified mail receipt and the Department confirms with the respondent by telephone or in-person that the respondent received the Initial Notice;

2. The signature on the certified mail receipt is illegible, but the Department confirms it is the respondent’s by comparing it to another source such as Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles DAVID database, or the Department confirms with the respondent by telephone or in-person that the respondent received the Initial Notice; or

3. The Department does not receive confirmation of receipt, but the respondent returns the financial affidavit or other information in response to the Initial Notice. Service is complete if the respondent submits anything in writing that shows the respondent received the Initial Notice.

(6) Proceeding in Circuit Court as an Alternative to the Administrative Process.

(a) As allowed by section 409.2563(4)(l) and (m), F.S., the respondent may file a support action in circuit court and serve the Department with a copy of the petition. The respondent must have the petition served on the Deputy Agency Clerk as specified by the Initial Notice, within 20 days after the date the respondent is served the Initial Notice. If the Department is served timely, the administrative proceeding ends and the case proceeds in circuit court. If the respondent files a petition in circuit court, but does not serve the Department in the 20-day time frame, the Department will continue with the administrative establishment proceeding. If the petition is served on the Department timely, the Department will mail the petitioning parent or caregiver Form CS-OA88, Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.).

(b) Respondent Asks the Department to Proceed in Circuit Court. The respondent may ask the Department to stop the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court. The respondent must make this request in writing and the request must be received by the Department within 20 days after being served the Initial Notice. The request from the respondent must state the respondent requests the Department proceed with the determination of the support obligation in circuit court or that the respondent states his or her intentions to address custody matters or parental rights issues in circuit court. Oral requests are not accepted. If the respondent files a timely request for the Department to file an action in circuit court, the Department will send the respondent Form CS-OA247, Request for Court Action Status Update (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). The Department sends the petitioning parent Form CS-OA248, Notice of Court Action Financial Affidavit Needed for Court (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). The Department then sends the petitioning parent Form CS-PO31, Family Law Financial Affidavit (incorporated by reference, in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). When the petitioning parent returns the CS-PO31, the Department will file a petition with the clerk of court to determine the support obligation and obtain a civil case number. If the petitioning parent does not return the CS-PO31, the Department shall initiate case closure if the petitioning parent is not receiving public assistance. If the petitioning parent is receiving Medicaid or food assistance, the Department shall report noncooperation to the Department of Children and Families as required by section 409.2572, F.S.,

and initiate case closure. If the petitioning parent is receiving temporary cash assistance for the child, the Department shall prepare a financial affidavit for the other parent as authorized by section 61.30(15), F.S.

(c) When the Department receives a stamped copy of the petition back from the clerk, it sends a copy of the petition to the respondent by certified mail, return receipt requested. Along with the copy of the petition, the Department sends Form CS-OA18, Notice of Commencement of Action and Request for Waiver of Service of Process Administrative Paternity Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). The Department also sends two copies of Form CS-OA19, Waiver of Service of Process (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). If the respondent is represented by an attorney, the Department sends the packet of forms and petition to the respondent's attorney. The respondent has 10 days from the receipt of these forms to sign and complete one copy of the CS-OA19 and return it to the Department. If the Department does not receive the signed completed CS-OA19 within 10 days, it proceeds with the establishment of the support obligation administratively. The Department will also file a voluntary dismissal of the civil case with the clerk of court and mail a copy of the voluntary dismissal to the respondent. If the respondent completes and returns the CS-OA19 within 10 days, the Department sends the petitioner the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding CS-OA88 form. The Department will then end the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court.

(7) Proposed Administrative Support Order.

(a) After the Department serves the respondent with the Initial Notice in accordance with paragraph (4)(b), not no sooner than 20 days after service, the Department shall calculate the respondent's support obligation using the child support guidelines in section 61.30, F.S. If the respondent does not provide financial information within the time required by section 409.2563(13)(a) and (b), F.S., the Department shall impute income as provided by section 61.30(2)(b), F.S. or section 409.2563(5), as applicable.

(b) Calculation of the respondent's retroactive support obligation shall be in accordance with section 61.30(17), F.S. Retroactive support shall be addressed in an initial determination of child support.

(c) The Department shall prepare Form CS-OA20, Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.), which for purposes of this rule is entitled Proposed Administrative Support Order, that establishes the terms of the support obligation and includes, at a minimum, all elements contained in section 409.2563(7)(e), F.S. The Department shall mail the Proposed Order to the respondent by regular mail to the respondent's address of record. The Proposed Order shall

include a notice of rights that informs the respondent of the right to an informal discussion with the Department, the right to a formal administrative hearing, and the right to consent to the entry of an Administrative Support Order. Copies of the child support guidelines worksheet prepared by the Department and the financial affidavit submitted by the other parent are mailed with the Proposed Order. The Department shall provide a copy of the Proposed Order and its attachments to the petitioner at the petitioner's address of record.

(d) The Proposed Order must include an explanation of any deviations from the guidelines the Department considered when calculating the support obligation and any retroactive support owed.

(e) If additional facts or information become available to the Department that materially changes the Proposed Order, the Department shall prepare an amended Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, using Form CS-OA20 (from now on referred to as the Amended Proposed Order). An Amended Proposed Order shall include guideline worksheets to explain the changes and the requirements established in section 409.2563(5)(a), F.S. The Department does not amend the Proposed Order if the additional facts or information become available after the respondent has requested an administrative hearing. Any additional facts or information are addressed at the hearing.

(8) Informal Discussions.

(a) The respondent may ask the Department to informally discuss the proposed order as authorized by section 409.2563(5)(c)5., F.S.

(b) If the respondent asks for an informal discussion within 10 days of the date the Department mailed the Proposed Order, the Department shall extend the time limit for the respondent to request a hearing. The Department shall extend the time limit to 10 days from the date the Department notifies the respondent the informal discussions have ended. The Department will use Form CS-OA32, Notice of Conclusion of Informal Discussion Administrative Paternity Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.), to inform the respondent the informal discussions have ended. The deadline for asking for an administrative hearing will not occur before 20 days from the date the Department mailed the Proposed Order to the respondent regardless of when the informal discussions have ended.

(c) The respondent may contact the Department to discuss the case at any time, however, contact outside the time frame referenced in paragraph (8)(b) does not extend the time to request a hearing. If the respondent asks the Department for an informal discussion outside of the time frame referenced above, the Department shall send the respondent Form CS-OA35, Notice of Late Request for Informal Discussion Administrative Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule

12E-1.036, F.A.C.), and inform the respondent that the Department will discuss the Proposed Order with the respondent, but will not extend the time to request an administrative hearing.

(d) The following types of contact do not constitute a request for informal discussion:

1. The respondent has general questions about the Department's Child Support Program or the respondent's case;

2. The respondent's questions do not affect the terms of the Proposed Order;

3. The respondent's questions are answered during a customer contact; or

4. The respondent provides new information but does not include a request for informal discussion.

(e) If the respondent does not appear for an appointment or reschedule a missed appointment to discuss the Proposed Order, the time to request an administrative hearing is not extended.

(f) At the end of the informal discussion, the Department shall mail the respondent Form CS-OA32, Notice of Conclusion of Informal Discussion Administrative Paternity Proceeding.

(9) Request for Administrative Hearing.

(a) To request an administrative hearing, the respondent must submit a written request to the Department's Deputy Agency Clerk at the address provided in the Proposed Order.

(b) The Department must receive the request for an administrative hearing no later than 20 days after the mailing date of the Proposed Order. If the respondent requests and is granted an informal discussion, the deadline for seeking an administrative hearing is 10 days from the date the Department informs the respondent the informal discussion ended using the Notice of Conclusion of Informal Discussion Administrative Paternity Proceeding (Form CS-OA32).

(c) The Department acknowledges all timely hearing requests received by the Deputy Agency Clerk using Form CS-OA55, Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.).

(d) If the request is received timely, the Department sends the request to the Florida Division of Administrative Hearings. The Division of Administrative Hearings notifies the Department, respondent, and petitioner in writing of the date, time, and place of the hearing.

(e) If the Department receives an untimely request for an administrative hearing, the Department denies the request and sends the respondent the Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding (Form CS-OA55). This form notifies the respondent that the request was not timely and the Department will proceed without a hearing.

(f) The respondent may withdraw the request for an administrative hearing up to five days before the scheduled date, or at the administrative law judge's discretion. The respondent may withdraw the request by providing a written request directly to the Division of Administrative Hearings.

(g) To reschedule a hearing, the party requesting to reschedule shall file a motion for continuance with the Division of Administrative Hearings in accordance with Rules 28-106.204 and 28-106.210, F.A.C.

(h) If the Department determines that an administrative hearing is appropriate, it may refer the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Support Order. The Department may ask for an administrative hearing and the Division of Administrative Hearings shall conduct an administrative hearing to determine the support obligation when:

1. The Department is not able to determine the income of the respondent; or

2. The amount of income claimed by one party is disputed by the other party.

(10) Final Administrative Support Orders. The Department uses Form CS-OA40, Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.) to establish the support obligation. Section 409.2563(7)(e), F.S., sets the requirement for the Final Administrative Support Order and the minimum requirements for the content of the order. In addition to the Final Administrative Support Order, the Department enters an Income Deduction Order as part of the Final Administrative Support Order. The respondent is responsible for making the ordered payments to the State Disbursement Unit until the income deduction begins. Once rendered, a Final Administrative Support Order has the same force and effect as a court order and it remains in effect until the Department modifies it, or it is vacated as described in subsection (15), or it is superseded by a court order. If an administrative hearing is held, the administrative law judge shall issue an administrative support order, or a final order denying an administrative support order.

(11) A respondent may consent to the entry of a final order any time after the receipt of the Initial Notice. To do this, the respondent must complete and return Form CS-PO384, Waiver of Opt-Out Administrative Proceeding (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.), after the respondent receives the Initial Notice Packet. If the respondent returns the Waiver of Opt-Out Administrative Proceeding, Financial Affidavit, and Parent Information Form, the Department sends the respondent Form CS-ES97, Waiver of Administrative Hearing (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.036, F.A.C.). The Department also sends a copy of the Proposed Administrative Support Order discussed in

subsection (6) of this rule. If the respondent completes and returns the CS-ES97, the Department need not wait 27 days from sending the Proposed Order to complete and render a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS-OA40. If the respondent does not return the CS-ES97, the Department waits at least 27 days after sending the Proposed Order before completing a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(12) Judicial Enforcement of Administrative Support Order. The Department may initiate judicial enforcement of an administrative support order by filing a petition for enforcement of administrative support order in circuit court. To do this, the Department must serve the respondent with a summons and a copy of the petition. If the circuit court issues an order enforcing the administrative support order, and the respondent does not comply, the Department may initiate contempt proceedings for violation of the court order.

(13) Modifying an Administrative Support Order.

(a) The Department shall file a petition in circuit court for a superseding order when support for an additional child of the same parents needs to be established or a child needs to be removed from the order.

(b) A parent or caregiver may request in writing that the Department modify an administrative support order by completing Form CS-PO200, Request for Support Order Review, hereby incorporated by reference, effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->_____).

(c) Criteria for modification. The Department shall begin a proceeding to modify an administrative support order if it has been three years or more since the last review under section 409.2564(11), F.S., when guidelines calculations show an increase or decrease in the support amount of at least 10%, or a minimum of \$25.00 a month and there is a permanent, involuntary change in circumstances. If it has been less than three years since the order was modified or reviewed, the order is eligible for modification if guidelines calculations show an increase or decrease in the support amount of at least 15% or \$50.00 per month and there is a permanent, involuntary change in circumstances. The requesting party must provide documentation showing a permanent, involuntary change of circumstance, which may include:

1. A parent or child is permanently disabled;

2. A parent or child develops a medical condition resulting in a decrease in a parent's ability to pay support or increased need of the child for support;

3. The financial needs of the child have increased resulting in the need for additional support;

4. One of the parents receive Social Security Disability Income; or

5. Changes in either parent's income. If the income of the parent who owes support increases, the Department need not prove that the change in income was involuntary to order a prospective increase in the child support amount.

(d) The Department shall notify the parents or caregiver when it begins a proceeding to modify the support obligation of an Administrative Support Order.

1. The Department uses Form CS-OA120R, Proposed Order to Modify Administrative Support Order, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->), to modify the support obligation amount when a review indicates a modification is appropriate. If the party that did not request the review responds during the support order review, the Department sends the proposed order by regular mail to both parties to their addresses of record. If the non-requesting party does not participate in the support order review, the Department shall attempt to serve the proposed order on the non-requesting party by certified mail or personal service. If service is not accomplished by certified mail or personal service, the Department shall send the non-requesting party the proposed order by regular mail to the non-requesting party's address of record. If the proposed order is not contested by either party within 30 days of service by certified mail or personal service, or 35 days after the Notice is sent by regular mail, the Department prepares and renders Form CS-OA140R, Final Modified Administrative Support Order, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->). Under section 409.2563(13)(c), F.S., a party to an administrative proceeding has a continuing duty to provide the Department with a current mailing address after being served with an initial notice under (5)(b) of this rule and the party is presumed to receive a subsequent notice, proposed order or other document mailed to the party's address of record including a proposed order to modify support.

2. The Proposed Order to Modify Administrative Support Order shall include the same notices as specified in subsection (7) of this rule.

(14) Termination of an Administrative Support Order

(a) A parent or caregiver may request in writing that the Department terminate an Administrative Support Order for the reasons listed in paragraph (b). A written request must include the following information:

1. Names and addresses of the respondent and petitioner;
2. Child support case number, administrative support order number, or depository number;
3. Names of child or children;
4. Specific reasons for the request to terminate; and
5. Any documentation that supports the request to terminate.

(b) The Department initiates action to terminate an administrative support order when:

1. A parent due support or caregiver who does not receive cash assistance requests termination of an Administrative Support Order.

2. The parent who owes support is permanently disabled, and is not receiving earned income. The person claiming permanent disability must provide a doctor's certificate stating the parent is permanently disabled and unable to return to work.

3. There has been a permanent change of physical custody of all the children on the order to the parent who owes support, or

4. The court terminates the parental rights of the parent who owes support.

(c) Arrears owed at the time the support is terminated will be established by the Department along with a repayment amount. The parent due support may waive arrears owed to them.

(d) The Department shall send a notice of intent to terminate the Administrative Support Order, to the non-requesting party, or any legal counsel or qualified representative representing the non-requesting party, and the requesting party. The notice of intent informs each parent:

1. The effective date of terminating the support order;
2. How to ask for an informal discussion;
3. How to ask for an administrative hearing; and
4. That he or she has the right to file a civil action in circuit court to determine child support issues.

(e) When the Department begins a proceeding to terminate an Administrative Support Order, the Department shall notify the parents or caregiver by regular mail at the address of record for each party using Form CS-OA 160, Notice of Intent to Terminate Final Administrative Support Order, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->). If the notice is not contested 35 days after the notice is sent by regular mail, the Department shall render Form CS-OA178, Final Administrative Order Terminating Support Order, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->).

(15) Dismissing the Administrative Support Proceeding. At any time before the entry of a Final Administrative Support Order, the Department may end the administrative proceeding and either close the case or proceed judicially. Instances when the Department will not proceed administratively include: a previous judicial support order for the children is provided by a party; the parties currently reside together as an intact family; or all the children reside with the alleged father. When the Department decides to end the administrative proceeding,

it will send the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, CS-OA88, to the parties.

(16) Vacating Administrative Support Orders.

(a) The Department vacates an administrative support order when the order is rendered in error resulting in a fundamental defect, such as a lack of jurisdiction and other reasons listed in sub-paragraphs 1 through 3. Case situations that require vacating the administrative support order include:

1. The Department becomes aware of a support order that predates the administrative support order.

2. Information provided to the Department by another state was in error causing Florida to render an order when it did not have the authority.

3. The case did not meet the criteria listed in sub-section (3).

(17) Forms. Members of the public may obtain copies of the forms used in this rule chapter incorporated by reference, without cost, by writing to the Florida Department of Revenue, Mail Stop 2-4814, 5050 West Tennessee Street, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399.

Rulemaking Authority 61.13(1)(b)6., 61.14(1)(c), 409.2557(3)(p), 409.2563(7)(e), 409.2563(16) F.S. Law Implemented 409.2563, History – New

12E-1.036 Administrative Establishment of Paternity and Support Obligations.

(1) Introduction. Section 409.256, F.S., authorizes allows the Department to administratively establish the paternity of a child. The law also authorizes allows the Department to administratively establish a paternity and support obligations when it is providing services under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act.

(2) Definitions. For purposes of this rule:

(a) “Address of record” means the address to which all administrative proposed orders, final orders, and other notices are mailed. The address of record is established as the active mailing or residential address maintained for the party by the Department that is listed on the initial notice that is served on the respondent. If the party provides a new address in writing after service of the initial notice, the new address is designated the address of record and all subsequent documents associated with the administrative action will be mailed to that address.

(b)(a) “Administrative Support Order” or “Final Order” means a final order rendered by the Department as allowed by Section 409.256, F.S. The Final Order establishes paternity or paternity and a support obligation for the child or children. The administrative support order may also include terms for monetary support, retroactive support, health insurance, and non-covered medical expenses if appropriate.

(c)(b) “Alleged Father” means “Putative Father” as defined by Section 409.256(1)(g) F.S., which is an individual

who is or may be the biological father of a child whose paternity has not been established and whose mother was unmarried when the child was conceived and born.

(d)(e) “Amended Proposed Administrative Support Order” or “Amended Proposed Order” is a modified Proposed Order issued by the Department to correct an error or reflect new information that changes the terms of the original or subsequent Proposed Order.

(e)(d) “Caregiver” means a person other than the mother, father, or alleged father, who has physical custody of a child or with whom the child primarily resides.

(f) “Emancipated” means the status of a minor child who has become an adult on reaching 18 years of age, by order of the court, by marriage, or by other means provided by law.

(g)(e) “Good cause” means the person scheduled for genetic testing missed the appointment for reasons beyond their control.

(h) “Income Deduction Order” means an administrative final order rendered by the Department directing an employer or other payor of income to deduct support payments from the income of a parent who is ordered to pay support.

(i)(f) “Legal service provider” means a program attorney as defined by Section 409.2554(9), F.S.

(j)(g) “Long-arm jurisdiction” refers to the conditions listed in Sections 48.193(1)(a) and 88.2011, F.S., that allow the Department to assert personal jurisdiction over a respondent who does not reside in Florida.

(k)(h) “Paternity and Administrative Support Proceeding” means an administrative action taken by the Department to order genetic testing, establish paternity, and establish a support obligation.

(l) “Petitioner” or “petitioning parent” means the parent or caregiver with whom the child resides.

(i) “Proposed Administrative Support Order” or “Proposed Order” means the intended administrative order produced by the Department after having considered genetic testing results, income, and other information about the parents and child or children.

(m)(j) “Public Assistance” means temporary cash assistance, food assistance, Medicaid, or any combination thereof.

(n) “Respondent” means the parent from whom the Department is seeking support.

(3) Case Selection Criteria.

(a) The Department uses administrative proceedings, judicial proceedings, and voluntary acknowledgment to establish paternity. Except as provided in paragraph (3)(b), as allowed by Section 409.256(2)(a), F.S., the Department is authorized to start an administrative proceeding to establish paternity or paternity and support if: the criteria in the statute are met.

- ~~1. Paternity has not been established for the child;~~
- ~~2. No father's name appears on the child's birth certificate or the person named on a birth certificate prior to July 1, 1997, is the alleged father named in the paternity declaration or affidavit;~~
- ~~3. The mother was not married when the child was conceived and born;~~
- ~~4. The mother or alleged father states in an affidavit or written declaration that the alleged father is or may be the child's biological father; and,~~
- ~~5. The Department is providing services under Title IV-D of the Social Security Act.~~

(b) ~~In addition to the criteria in paragraph (a),~~ The Department will does not start an administrative paternity or paternity and support proceeding if any of the following conditions exist: when:

- ~~1. The child's birth certificate lists the mother as married.~~
- ~~1.2. The Department has filed a paternity action in circuit court to determine the paternity of the child and the action is pending, referred the case to a legal service provider for judicial action.~~
- ~~3. The Department has received genetic test results that were obtained outside of the administrative establishment proceeding.~~
- ~~2.4. The alleged father or mother is a minor.~~
- ~~3.5. The alleged father does not live in Florida and long-arm jurisdiction is not applicable.~~
- ~~4.6. The child is in foster care.~~
5. In accordance with section 409.2579(4) F.S., the Department has reason to believe that the disclosure of information on the whereabouts of one party or the child to another person may result in physical or emotional harm to the party or the child. There is a family violence indicator on the case.
6. The Department does not have an active residential or mailing address for the petitioner or respondent.

(4) Statement of Mother Naming an Alleged Father or Fathers. For cases meeting the criteria in subsection (3), the Department requires the mother to name an alleged father or fathers. The Department uses Form CS-PO34, the Paternity Declaration ~~form~~ (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06599>), ~~CS PO34 effective 4/5/16 and~~ (incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.039, F.A.C.), to record the name of the alleged father or fathers.

(5) Obtaining Cooperation from the Mother or Caregiver.

(a) If a case is eligible for establishment of an administrative paternity order, the Department must obtain cooperation from the mother or caregiver before serving notice on the respondent. To obtain cooperation, the Department mails Form CS-OP05, Notice of Genetic Testing

Appointment, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> _____), by regular mail to the mother or caregiver. The CS-OP05 informs the mother or caregiver where and when to appear to provide a sample for genetic testing, and it also informs the mother or caregiver to bring the child(ren) named on the form to be tested.

(b) If the mother or caregiver and the child(ren) appear for the genetic test and provide a sample timely, the Department shall proceed to serve the respondent with an initial notice as described in subsection (5) below.

(c) If the mother or caregiver and child(ren) do not provide a sample and a sample is not available to the Department from a previous genetic test, the Department shall initiate case closure for a petitioner who does not receive public assistance. For petitioners receiving public assistance, the Department shall report noncooperation to the Department of Children and Families and initiate case closure.

~~(6)(5)~~ Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity and Order to Appear for Genetic Testing.

(a) Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity or Paternity and Administrative Support Requirements. The Department will serve the alleged father with aForm CS-OP01, Notice of Administrative Proceeding to Establish Paternity, ~~form~~ hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx

(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06600>), ~~CS-OP01 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference,~~ hereafter referred to as the Notice of Proceeding. The Department will send the alleged father ~~an~~ Form CS-OP02, form Order to Appear for Genetic Testing, incorporated by reference effective 04/16 (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06601>), ~~CS-OP02 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference,~~ with the Notice of Proceeding and a copy of the Paternity Declaration, CS-PO34, or an affidavit that names the alleged father. The Notice of Proceeding will be served on the respondent by certified mail, restricted delivery, return receipt requested, or by any other means of service that meet the requirements for service of process in a civil action. Once served, the alleged father must notify the Department in writing of any change of address. If the alleged father does not update the Department, the Department will serve by regular mail any other document or resulting order to the address of record where the Notice of Proceeding was served and the alleged father is deemed to have received them.

~~(b) The Department sends a Notice of Genetic Testing Appointment~~ form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06602>), ~~CS-OP05 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by~~

~~reference, by regular mail to the mother or caregiver. The CS-OP05 informs the mother or caregiver where and when to appear to provide a sample for genetic testing, and it also informs the mother or caregiver to bring the children named on the form to be tested.~~

~~(b)(e) Alleged Father Wishes to Proceeding in Circuit Court.~~

~~1. As allowed by Sections 409.256(4)(a)11. and 12., F.S., the alleged father may file a paternity action in circuit court and serve the Department with a copy of the petition. The petition must be served personally by a deputy sheriff or private process server. Service by mail only will not end this proceeding. The person ordered to appear must have the petition served on the Deputy Agency Clerk within 20 days after the date he is served the Notice of Proceeding. If the Department is served timely, the administrative proceeding ends and the case proceeds in circuit court. If the alleged father files a petition in circuit court, but does not serve the Department in the 20-day time frame, the Department will continue with the administrative establishment proceeding. If the petition is served on the Department timely, the Department will mail the child's mother or caregiver the Form CS-OA88 Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx~~

~~(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___), CS-OA88 effective ~~XX/XX/XX~~ 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference.~~

~~2. Alleged Father Asks the Department to Proceed in Circuit Court. The alleged father may ask the Department to stop the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court. The alleged father must make this request in writing within 20 days after being served the Notice of Proceeding. The request from the alleged father must state that he requests the Department proceed with the determination of paternity in circuit court or that he has custody matters or parental rights issues which need to be addressed by the court. The Department will not accept oral requests to proceed in circuit court. Oral requests are not accepted. If the respondent makes a timely request for the Department to file an action in circuit court, the Department will send the respondent Form CS-OA247, Request for Court Action Status Update, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___). The Department sends the petitioning parent Form CS-OA248, Notice of Court Action Financial Affidavit Needed for Court, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___).~~

~~If the petitioning parent does not return the CS-OA248, the Department shall initiate case closure unless the petitioning parent receives Medicaid or food assistance. The Department shall report noncooperation as authorized by~~

section 409.2572, F.S., to the Department of Children and Families, initiate case closure and send the petitioning parent Form CS-PO31, Family Law Financial Affidavit, hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___). When the other parent returns the CS-PO31, the Department shall file a petition in circuit court to determine the support obligation. After filing the petition in circuit court, the Department ~~When the Department receives a timely written request to proceed in circuit court, it will file a petition with the clerk of the circuit court and obtain a civil case number. When the Department receives a stamped copy of the petition back from the clerk, it will send~~ a copy of the petition to the alleged father by certified mail, return receipt requested. Along with the copy of the petition, the Department ~~will~~ send the Notice of Commencement of Action and Request for Waiver of Service of Process Administrative Paternity Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06604>), CS-OA18 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. The Department ~~will~~ also send two copies of the Waiver of Service of Process form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06605>), CS-OA19 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. If the alleged father is represented by an attorney, the Department ~~sends~~ ~~will send~~ the this packet of forms and petition to the alleged father's attorney. The alleged father has 10 days from the receipt of these forms to sign and complete one copy of the CS-OA19 and return it to the Department. If the Department does not receive the signed completed CS-OA19 within 10 days, it ~~will~~ proceeds with the establishment of paternity administratively. The Department ~~will~~ also files a voluntary dismissal of the civil case with the clerk of court and mail a copy of the voluntary dismissal to the alleged father. If the alleged father completes and returns the CS-OA19 within 10 days, the Department ~~will~~ send the ~~child's mother~~ petitioner or caregiver the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding CS-OA88 form. The Department will then end the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court.

~~(7)(6) Right to Contest the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing.~~

~~(a) Alleged Father Requests Informal Review.~~

1. Section 409.256(5), F.S., allows the person ordered to appear to contest the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing by asking the Department, in writing, for an informal review within 15 days after the date the Notice of Proceeding is served. When the Department receives the request for an informal review, it will contact the alleged father and, if possible, conduct the review by telephone. If the alleged father asks to appear in person, the Department will schedule an appointment. If the alleged father is incarcerated, he may

present any concerns to the Department in writing or arrange with confinement officials to receive a phone call from the Department. At the end of the informal review, the Department will inform the alleged father whether it will continue with the administrative establishment of paternity. If the Department decides not to continue, it will end the administrative proceeding and will send the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, CS-OA88, to the parties notifying them about the dismissal. If the Department intends to continue, it will inform the alleged father of its decision using the Notice of Conclusion of Informal Discussion Administrative Paternity Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06606>), CS-OA32 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. The CS-OA32 informs the alleged father of the Department's decision to continue and why. It also informs him of the right to contest the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing at an administrative hearing.

2. If the alleged father does not ask for an informal review within 15 days after the date of service of the Notice of Proceeding, the Department will inform him the request is outside the required time to ask for an informal review. The Department will do this using the Notice of Late Request for Informal Discussion Administrative Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06607>), CS-OA35 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, and will continue with the administrative establishment proceeding.

(b) Alleged Father Asks for an Administrative Hearing.

1. In accordance with Section 409.256(5)(b), F.S., the person ordered to appear has 15 calendar days ~~after~~ ~~from~~ the mailing date of the Notice of Conclusion of Informal Review to ask the Department for an administrative hearing. If the Department receives the request within the 15-day period, the Department will refer the request to the Division of Administrative Hearings. The Department will inform the requestor it sent the request to the Division of Administrative Hearings using the Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06608>), CS-OA55 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. If the Department receives a timely hearing request, it will not continue the proceeding until the Division of Administrative Hearings issues an order, or the alleged father withdraws his request for a hearing. The Department will mail the Notice of Proceeding, Order to Appear for Genetic Testing, Paternity Declaration, and the alleged father's request for hearing to the Division of Administrative Hearings within 15 calendar days after the receipt of the request for hearing.

2. If the alleged father does not ask for an administrative hearing within the 15-day time frame, the Department will

proceed with the administrative proceeding. The alleged father may not ask for an administrative hearing without first requesting an informal review.

~~(8)(7)~~ Scheduling and Rescheduling of Genetic Testing Sample Collections.

(a) Scheduling of Genetic Testing Sample Collections. The Department will schedule the initial genetic testing sample collection before sending the alleged father the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing, CS-OP02 and the mother or caregiver the Notice of Genetic Testing Appointment, CS-OP05. The CS-OP02 and CS-OP05 informs the parties when and where to appear for the genetic testing sample collection. The CS-OP05 will also direct the child's mother or caregiver to bring the child to the genetic test sample collection.

(b) Rescheduling of Genetic Testing. The Department will reschedule the appointment for a genetic testing sample collection:

1. When a person scheduled for the genetic testing sample collection asks the Department to reschedule the genetic testing sample collection before the ordered test date. The person does not have to provide the Department a reason for rescheduling the initial genetic testing sample collection. The Department will inform the person of the new date using Department form Notice of Genetic Testing, Appointment, CS-OP05.

2. One time if the person ordered to test shows good cause for not appearing at the scheduled genetic testing sample collection. The person claiming good cause must provide the Department with the facts that supports his or her claim for missing the scheduled genetic testing sample collection in writing no later than 10 days after the scheduled sample collection.

3. One time when a person sanctioned as described by subsection ~~(9)~~ ~~(8)~~ of this rule asks for a genetic testing sample collection.

(c) The Department will require and schedule a second genetic testing sample collection if it has reason to believe that the result of the previous test may be unreliable.

(d) Per Section 409.256(6)(c), F.S., a person previously tested may ask for a second genetic testing sample collection by filing a written request with the Department. The person asking for the second genetic testing sample collection must pay for the test before the Department schedules the test unless that person is receiving public assistance. To get a second genetic testing sample collection, the person must ask for the sample collection no later than 15 days after the Department mailed the initial test results.

~~(9)(8)~~ Refusal to Submit to Genetic Testing Sample Collection or Failure to Appear for Genetic Testing Sample Collection. Section 409.256(7), F.S., allows the Department to take one or more of the following actions if a person refuses to

submit to the genetic testing sample collection or fails to appear on the ordered date, does not use the one-time opportunity to reschedule, or does not show good cause for missing the sample collection within 10 days after the scheduled sample collection.

~~(a) If the mother or caregiver does not appear, the Department will verify the reason and schedule a second genetic testing sample collection if the mother or caregiver agrees to submit to genetic testing. The Department will tell the mother or caregiver of the new sample collection date using the Notice of Genetic Testing Appointment form, CS-OP05. If the mother or caregiver does not appear at the second test or refuses to submit, and the mother or caregiver is not on public assistance, the Department will begin action to close the case. If the mother or caregiver receives public assistance, the Department will report him or her to the Department of Children and Families for possible sanctions of benefits.~~

~~(a)(b)~~ If the alleged father does not appear without requesting rescheduling or providing good cause, the Department will schedule a second genetic sample collection and send the alleged father the Notice of Genetic Testing Appointment, CS-OP05, which will list the new date, time, and location of the genetic testing sample collection. If the alleged father does not appear to the second sample collection, the Department is authorized to start a proceeding to suspend the alleged father's driver license and motor vehicle registration as allowed by Section 61.13016, F.S. The Department will tell the alleged father of the intent to suspend his driver license and vehicle registration by sending the Notice of Intent to Suspend Driver's License and Vehicle Registration(s) form

~~(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06609>), CS-EF55 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference in Rule 12E-1.023. The Department sends this form by regular mail and it also informs the alleged father of his right to contest the action in circuit court. If the alleged father does not request a new genetic testing sample collection or contest the driver license suspension within 20 days after the mailing date of the CS-OP05 EF55, the Department will send an electronic request to the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles to suspend the driver license and vehicle registration of the alleged father. If the alleged father later complies with the Department and requests another test, and appears at the rescheduled genetic testing appointment, the Department will electronically request reinstatement of the driver license/vehicle registration from the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. The Department will provide the alleged father the Driver License/Vehicle Registration Reinstatement Notice~~

~~(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06610>), CS-EF57 effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by~~

reference in Rule 12E-1.023, which informs the alleged father to go to a local Driver License Examining Office to get the license reinstated. If the alleged father does not contest the suspension of the driver license/vehicle registration or request a new appointment, the Department will end the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court. The Department will not authorize reinstatement of the license until the alleged father submits to genetic testing.

~~(b)(e)~~ Prior Test Results. If an alleged father refuses to comply with the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing, but previously provided a sample for another case, the Department is authorized to use the previous sample taken from the alleged father. The alleged father is informed that the Department is authorized to do this in the Order to Appear for Genetic Testing, CS-OP02.

~~(c)(d)~~ File a Petition in Circuit Court. If the alleged father refuses to comply with the Order to Appear, and a previous sample is not available, the Department will file a petition in circuit court to establish paternity, obtain a support order, and seek repayment from the alleged father for costs incurred by the Department. If the Department files a petition in circuit court, it will notify the mother or caregiver using the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding, CS-OA88 form.

~~(10)(9)~~ Genetic Testing Results.

(a) A laboratory under contract with the Department performs genetic testing of the samples and notifies the Department of the results. If the genetic testing results show a statistical probability of 99% or greater that the alleged father is the biological father the Department will issue a Proposed Order of Paternity, issue a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, or refer the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order if the Department determines that an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the respondent's income.

(b) The Department will close the alleged father's case if the genetic test shows a statistical probability of less than 99% that the alleged father is the biological father. In this circumstance the Department will:

1. Send the alleged father a copy of the Results of Genetic Testing form

(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06611>), CS-PO07a effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, by regular mail. The CS-PO07a is sent to the alleged father to inform him of the results of the genetic test. If genetic testing results indicate less than a 99% probability that the alleged father is the biological father, the form states that he is not the biological father of the child listed on the notice and the Department will take no further action, unless a second test is required.

2. The Department will close the alleged father's case unless a second test is requested within 15 days after the mailing date of the genetic testing results or a second test is required by the Department.

3. Send the mother, caregiver, or other state a copy of the Results of Genetic Testing form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06612>), CS-PO07b effective 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, by regular mail. The CS-PO07b informs the addressee the results of the genetic test. If genetic testing results indicate less than a 99% probability that the alleged father is the biological father, it states that alleged father is not the biological father of the child named in the notice.

~~4. Contact the mother or caregiver if he or she is on public assistance to find out if there is another possible father. If the mother or caregiver claims there is another possible father or fathers, the Department will have the mother or caregiver complete a Paternity Declaration, CS-PO34. If he or she does not cooperate and receives public assistance, the Department will report the person to the Department of Children and Families for sanctions. If the mother or caregiver does not receive public assistance and does not provide the name of an alleged father, the Department will dismiss the administrative proceeding and close the case.~~

~~(11)(10)~~ Proposed Order of Paternity. The Proposed Order of Paternity

(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06613>), CS-OP30 effective ~~xx/xx~~4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, is sent to the alleged father by regular mail to the address of record. The Proposed Order of Paternity informs him that the Department intends to issue a final order establishing him as the legal father of the child or children named in the Proposed Order of Paternity. The Proposed Order of Paternity informs the alleged father of his right to an informal review and to an administrative hearing. The time frames, forms, and procedures for the informal review and administrative hearing are the same as described in paragraphs ~~(13)(11)~~(a) and (b). The Department will:

~~(a)1.~~ Serve the Proposed Order of Paternity, CS-OP30, on the alleged father by regular mail at the address of record. A copy of the genetic test results from the laboratory must accompany the proposed order when the Department mails the Proposed Order of Paternity.

~~(b)2.~~ Send the alleged father the ~~r~~Results of the ~~g~~Genetic ~~t~~Testing form, CS-PO07a. The CS-PO07a informs the alleged father ~~that genetic testing has shown~~ showing that he is the biological father of the child.

~~(c)3.~~ Mail a copy of the Proposed Order of Paternity, CS-OP30, to the mother, caregiver, or other state. The genetic test results ~~Results of Genetic Testing form, CS-PO07b,~~ will be included in the packet ~~indicating genetic testing has shown~~

showing the alleged father is the biological father of the child or children.

~~(12)(11)~~ Proceeding to Establish an Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(a) After paternity has been determined, the Department may serve the alleged father by regular mail at the address of record with the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06614>), CS-OA01 effective ~~XX/XX~~4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. The CS-OA01 informs the alleged father the Department intends to establish a paternity and a support obligation for the child named in the Notice and explains the steps the Department will take. The CS-OA01 also informs the alleged father of his right to file an action in circuit court or request the Department to proceed in circuit court instead of administratively. The Department will:

1. Send the alleged father the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order form, CS-OA01, by regular mail informing him of the Department's intent to establish an order for paternity and support. The Department uses the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity and Administrative Support Order form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06615>), CS-OX01 effective ~~XX/XX~~4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, when there is more than one child on the case and paternity has already been established for one or more children.

~~2. Send the alleged father, by regular mail, the Results of Genetic Testing form, CS-PO07a, which states the results of the genetic test.~~

~~2.3.~~ Send the alleged father the Financial Affidavit Administrative Support Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06616>), CS-OA11 effective ~~XX/XX~~4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. The CS-OA11 requests information to determine an individual's income for the purpose of calculating the child support guideline amount. Also included in the packet is the Parent Information Form Administrative Support Proceeding (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06617>), CS-OA12 effective ~~XX/XX~~4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, which asks each party for case specific information regarding employment, residence, and children.

~~3.4.~~ Send the mother, caregiver, or other state a copy of the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order, CS-OA01, by regular mail. The Department will also include the genetic test results~~Results of Genetic Testing, CS-PO07b,~~ and a blank Financial Affidavit Administrative Support Proceeding, CS-OA11, in the packet. The Financial

Affidavit is not sent to caregivers. The Department also sends the Notice to Parent or Caregiver of Administrative Proceeding form (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06618>), CS-OA06 effective XX/XX 4/5/16 and incorporated by reference. The Notice to Parent or Caregiver of Administrative Proceeding informs the mother or caregiver of the proceeding to establish support and directs the mother to complete the enclosed forms. Included in the packet is the Parent Information Form Administrative Support Proceeding, CS-OA12.

(b) Alleged Father's Rights; Notice of Proceeding in Circuit Court as an alternative to the Administrative Process:

1. The alleged father may file a paternity action in circuit court and serve the Department with a copy of the petition. ~~The petition must be served personally by a Deputy Sheriff or private process server. Service by mail only will not end this proceeding.~~ The alleged father must have the petition served on the Deputy Agency Clerk at the address specified in the notice within 20 days after the date the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order was mailed. If the Department is served timely, it will end the administrative establishment process and proceed in circuit court. If the alleged father files a petition in circuit court, but does not serve the Department in the 20-day time frame, the Department will continue with the administrative establishment proceeding by either issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06619>), CS-OA20 effective xx/xx4/5/16 and incorporated by reference, or referring the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order if the Department determines that an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the respondent's income. If the petition is served on the Department timely, the Department will mail the petitioning parent or caregiver the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, CS-OA88.

2. The alleged father may ask the Department to stop the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court. The alleged father must make this request in writing and the request must be received by the Department within 20 days after the date the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order was mailed. The request from the alleged father must state ~~that he~~ the alleged father requests the Department to proceed with the establishment of paternity and a support obligation in circuit court, or that ~~he has~~ the alleged father has custody matters or parental rights issues which need to be addressed by the court. ~~The Department will not accept oral requests are not accepted to proceed in circuit court.~~ If the respondent files a timely request for the

Department to file an action in circuit court, the Department sends the respondent a Request for Court Action Status Update (CS-OA247). The Department sends the other parent a Notice of Court Action Financial Affidavit Needed for Court (CS-OA248). The Department then sends the other parent the Family Law Financial Affidavit (CS-PO31). When the petitioning parent returns the CS-PO31, the Department ~~When the Department receives a timely request to proceed in circuit court, it~~ will file a petition with the clerk of court to determine paternity and support obligation and to obtain a civil case number. If the other parent does not return the CS-PO31, the Department shall initiate case closure if the petitioning parent is not receiving public assistance. If the petitioning parent is receiving Medicaid or food assistance, the Department shall report noncooperation to the Department of Children and Families as required by section 409.2572, F.S., and initiate case closure. If the petitioning parent is receiving temporary cash assistance for the child, the Department shall prepare a financial affidavit for the other parent as authorized by section 61.30(15) F.S. When the Department receives a stamped copy of the petition from the clerk, it will send one copy of the petition to the alleged father by certified mail, return receipt requested. Along with the copy of the petition, the Department will send a Notice of Commencement of Action and Request for Waiver of Service of Process Administrative Paternity and Support Proceeding, CS-OA18 form. The Department will also send two copies of the Waiver of Service of Process, CS-OA19 form. If the respondent is represented by an attorney, the Department sends the packet of forms and petition to the respondent's attorney. The alleged father has 10 days after the receipt of these forms to complete one copy of the CS-OA19 and return it to the Department. ~~a-~~ If the Department does not receive the signed completed CS-OA19 within 10 days or if the alleged father does not respond to the Notice of Proceeding, the Department will proceed ~~proceeds~~ with the administrative establishment of paternity and support by issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS-OA20, or referring the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order if the Department determines that an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the respondent's income. The Department will also file a voluntary dismissal of the civil case with the clerk of court and mail a copy of the voluntary dismissal to the respondent.

a.b- If the alleged father completes and returns the CS-OA19 within 10 days, the Department ~~will send the child's custodian or caregiver petitioner~~ the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding, CS-OA88 form. The Department will end the administrative proceeding and proceed in circuit court.

~~(13)~~⁽¹²⁾ Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order. Not sooner than 20 days after ~~notice is served~~ servicing the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Administrative Support Order form, CS-OA01 under subsection (11) (40), the Department shall calculate the respondent's support obligation using the child support guidelines in section 61.30, F.S. If the respondent does not provide financial information within the time required by section 409.2563(13)(a) and (b), F.S., the Department shall impute income as provided section 61.30(2)(b), F.S. or section 409.2563(5), as applicable.

(a) Calculation of the respondent's retroactive support obligation shall be in accordance with section 61.30(17), F.S. Retroactive support shall be addressed in an initial determination of child support.

(b) The Department shall prepare a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order (CS-OA20), incorporated by reference, which for purposes of the rule is entitled Proposed Administrative Support order, that establishes the terms of the support obligation and includes, at a minimum, all elements contained in section 409.2563(7)(e), F.S. The Department shall mail the Proposed Order to the respondent by regular mail to the respondent's address of record. The Proposed Order shall include a notice of rights that informs the respondent of the right to an informal discussion with the Department, the right to a formal administrative hearing, and the right to consent to the entry of an Administrative Paternity and Support Order. Copies of the child support guidelines worksheet prepared by the Department and the financial affidavit submitted by the other parent are mailed with the Proposed Order. The Department shall provide a copy of the Proposed Order and its attachments to the petitioner at the petitioner's address of record.

(c) ~~The~~ Department may proceed with the administrative establishment of paternity and support by either sending the alleged father a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS-OA20, or referring the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order if the Department determines that an evidentiary hearing is appropriate to determine the respondent's income. The Department shall calculate the respondent's support obligation using the child support guidelines in section 61.30, F.S. If the respondent does not provide financial information within the time required by section 409.2563(13)(a) and (b), F.S., the Department shall impute income as provided by section 61.30(2)(b), or impute income at fulltime minimum wage as provided by section 409.2563(5)(a), F.S. Calculation of the respondent's retroactive support obligation shall be in accordance with section 61.30(17), F.S. Retroactive support shall be addressed in an initial determination of child support. The Department uses a Proposed Administrative Paternity and

Support Order
(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06620>), CS-OX20 effective ~~xx/xx~~^{4/5/16} and incorporated by reference, when a proceeding involves more than one child and paternity has already been established for one or more of the children. ~~The Administrative Proposed and Final Orders Options~~ List
(<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06621>), CS-OP100 effective ~~4/5/16~~ and incorporated by reference, contains optional text for the proposed orders issued under this subsection. The Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order may include terms for monetary support, retroactive support, health insurance, and non-covered medical expenses as appropriate. The Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order tells the alleged father that the Department intends to issue an administrative order establishing paternity and a support obligation for the child or children listed in the Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(d) The Proposed Order must include an explanation of any deviations from the guidelines the Department considered when calculating the support obligation and any retroactive support owed.

(e) If additional facts or information become available to the Department that materially changes the Proposed Order, the Department shall prepare an Amended Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order form, CS-OA20 (from now on referred to as the Amended Proposed Order). An Amended Proposed Order shall include guideline worksheets to explain the changes and the requirements established in section 409.2563(5)(a), F.S. The Department does not amend the Proposed Order if the additional facts or information become available after the respondent has requested an administrative hearing. Any additional facts or information are addressed at the hearing.

(f) The Proposed Order also informs the alleged father of his rights to contest the Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order. The alleged father's rights to contest the Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS-OA20, CS-OX20, or the Proposed Order for Paternity, CS-OP30, discussed in paragraph (11) (40), are:

1. ~~(a)~~ Informal Review. The alleged father has the right to an informal review, and may contact the Department within 10 days after the mailing date of the proposed order to ask for an informal review. The alleged father may ask for an informal review either orally or in writing. If the informal review results in a change to the proposed order or if an error is detected, the Department will issue either an Amended Proposed Order of Paternity, CS-OP30, or an Amended Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS-OA20. The Department may discontinue the support

proceeding if the alleged father provides proof that an obligation should not be established. Types of circumstances where the Department would not proceed to render a support obligation includes: all children reside with the alleged father, or the alleged father, mother, and children reside together. If at the conclusion of the informal review the Department intends to render a final order, it will tell the alleged father using the Notice of Conclusion of Informal Discussion Administrative Paternity and Support Proceeding form, CS- OA32.

~~2.(b)~~ Administrative Hearing. The alleged father or the Department has the right to an administrative hearing. To request an administrative hearing, the respondent must submit a written request to the Department's Deputy Agency Clerk at the address provided in the Proposed Order. If the alleged father wishes to ask for an administrative hearing, he has 20 days after the mailing date of the Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order or the Proposed Order for Paternity or, if the Department receives an informal review request timely, 10 days from the mailing date of the CS-OA32, whichever is later. If the Department receives the request for administrative hearing timely, it will refer the request to the Division of Administrative Hearings. ~~The Department will inform the requestor that the Department sent the request to the Division of Administrative Hearings using the Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding form, CS-OA55.~~ If the request is received timely, the Department sends the respondent the Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding, form CS-OA55, notifying the respondent that the request that the Department will proceed with a hearing. The Department also sends the request to the Florida Division of Administrative Hearings. The Division of Administrative Hearings notifies the Department, respondent, and petitioner in writing of the date, time, and place of the hearing. If the Department receives an untimely request for an administrative hearing, the Department denies the request and sends the respondent the Acknowledgment of Hearing Request Administrative Proceeding, form CS-OA55. This form notifies the respondent that the request was not timely and the Department will proceed without a hearing.

(g) The genetic test results will be admitted as evidence and made part of the hearing record. If the statistical probability equals or exceeds a 99% probability that the alleged father is the biological father, there is a presumption of paternity. The presumption can be rebutted only by clear and convincing evidence to the contrary.

(h) The respondent may withdraw the request for an administrative hearing up to five days before the scheduled date, or at the administrative law judge's discretion. The respondent may withdraw the request by providing a written request directly to the Division of Administrative Hearings. To

reschedule a hearing, the party requesting to reschedule shall file a motion for continuance with the Division of Administrative Hearings in accordance with rules 28-106.204 and 28-106.210, F.A.C.

(i) If the Department determines that an administrative hearing is appropriate, it may refer the proceeding to the Division of Administrative Hearings without issuing a Proposed Administrative Paternity and Support Order. At the hearing, the administrative law judge may issue a final order that addresses paternity, or paternity and support. The administrative law judge will also determine any applicable retroactive support and include it as a sum certain in the final order. The retroactive support will be calculated for the 24 months prior to the date of the service of process for the Notice of Proceeding to Establish Paternity. If the administrative law judge issues an order, the Department will render it.

~~(14)(13)~~ Final Order Establishing Paternity or Paternity and Child Support.

(a) The Department will render a Final Order of Paternity (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___06622), CS-OP50 effective ~~xx/xx4/5/16~~, or a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___06623), CS-OA40 effective ~~xx/xx04/05/16~~, both forms incorporated by reference, if the alleged father does not ask for a hearing timely. The Department may use a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___06624), CS-OX40 effective ~~xx/xx4/5/16~~ and incorporated by reference, in cases where there is more than one child on the order and paternity does not need to be established for all of the children. ~~The Administrative Proposed and Final Orders Options List, CS-OP100 contains optional text for the final orders issued under this subsection.~~ In addition to the Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order, the Department enters an Income Deduction Order as part of the Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order. The respondent is responsible for making the ordered payments to the State Disbursement Unit until the income deduction begins.

(b) A respondent may consent to the entry of a final order any time after the receipt of the Initial Notice. To do this, the respondent must complete and return the Waiver of Opt-Out Administrative Proceeding (CS-PO384), (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-___), incorporated by reference, effective XX/XX, after the respondent receives the Initial Notice Packet. If the respondent returns the Waiver of Opt-Out Administrative Proceeding, Financial Affidavit, and Parent Information Form, the Department sends the respondent the Waiver of Administrative Hearing (CS-ES97).

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____), incorporated herein by reference, effective XX/XX. The Department also sends a copy of the Proposed Administrative Support Order discussed in subsection (6) of this rule. If the respondent completes and returns the CS-ES97, the Department need not wait 27 days from sending the Proposed Order to complete and render a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order, CS- OX40. If the respondent does not return the CS-ES97, the Department waits at least 27 days after sending the Proposed Order before completing a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(c)(b) Any Final Order of Paternity or Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order rendered as allowed by this rule has the same effect as a judgment entered by the circuit court pursuant to Chapter 742, F.S.

(d)(e) The Department will notify the Department of Health's Bureau of Vital Statistics when paternity is established for a child under this rule. The Department will ask the Bureau of Vital Statistics to amend the child's birth certificate to include the name of the legal father. In cases where the child was born in a state or U.S. Territory other than Florida, the Department will send a copy of the Final Order of Paternity or Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order to the birth registrar where the child was born.

(15) Judicial Enforcement of Administrative Support Order. The Department may initiate judicial enforcement of an administrative support order by filing a petition for enforcement of administrative paternity and support order in circuit court. To do this, the Department must serve the respondent with a summons and a copy of the petition. If the circuit court issues an order enforcing the administrative paternity and support order, and the respondent does not comply, the Department may initiate contempt proceedings for violation of the court order.

(16)(44) Right to Judicial Review.

(a) Each Final Order of Paternity or Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order rendered by the Department shall inform the adversely affected party of his or her right to judicial review. The adversely affected party must file a Notice of Appeal within 30 days after the date of rendition of the final order.

(b) The Department has 30 days to ask for judicial review of any Final Order of Paternity or Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order issued by an administrative law judge.

(17)(45) Modification, Termination, or Suspension of a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order. The Department shall follow the procedures in Section 409.2563, F.S., to modify, or terminate, ~~or suspend~~ the support obligation of a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order.

(18)(46) Dismissing the Administrative Paternity Proceeding. At any time before the entry of a Final Order of Paternity or a Final Administrative Paternity and Support Order, the Department may end the administrative proceeding and either close the case or proceed judicially. Instances when the Department will not proceed administratively include: a previous judicial support order for the children is provided by a party, the parties currently reside together as an intact family, or all the children reside with the alleged father. When the Department decides to end the administrative proceeding it will send the Dismissal of Administrative Proceeding form, CS-OA88, to the parties.

(19) Vacating Administrative Support Orders.

(a) The Department vacates an administrative support order when the order is rendered in error resulting in a fundamental defect, such as a lack of jurisdiction and other reasons listed in sub-paragraphs 1 through 3. Case situations that require vacating the administrative support order include:

1. The Department becomes aware of a support order that predates the administrative support order.

2. Information provided to the Department by another state was in error causing Florida to render an order when it did not have the authority.

3. The case did not meet the criteria listed in sub-section (3).

(20)(47) Forms. Members of the public may get copies of the forms used in this rule chapter, incorporated by reference, without cost, by writing to the Department of Revenue, Child Support Program, Attn.: Forms Coordinator, P.O. Box 8030, Tallahassee, Florida, 32314-8030.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(p), 409.256(17) FS. Law Implemented 409.256, 409.2563 FS. History—New 4-5-16, Amended _____.

12E-1.037 Notification to Withhold Support from Reemployment Assistance.

(1) Definition. As used in this rule, the term "support obligations," which is defined by section 443.051(1)(b), F.S., means legally ordered payments or amounts due under a court order, administrative order, or judgment being enforced by the Department and that is issued by this state, another state, or a foreign country.

(2) Data exchange with the Department of Economic Opportunity.

(a) The Department receives data files periodically from the Department of Economic Opportunity and compares the reemployment assistance (formerly known as unemployment compensation) applicant information on the files to its own records of parents who owe support obligations and parents against whom the Department is seeking to establish a support obligation.

(b) If a name and social security number on a data file matches with a parent in the Department's records the Department adds the reemployment assistance information from the file to the parent's child support case record.

(c) When a data file includes reemployment assistance applicants who do not match with a parent in the Department's records the Department retains the nonmatching data for two years. The Department uses the data to perform data matching against parents with new cases opened by the Department during the two-year retention period.

(3) Notifying the Department of Economic Opportunity of the withholding percentage. (a) When the Department reports the names of reemployment assistance applicants owing support obligations as required by section 443.051, F. S., the Department reports the withholding amount as a percentage of the reemployment assistance benefit amount.

(b) If a court enters a support order on or after July 1, 2006, that requires a reemployment assistance withholding percentage that is different than the 40 percent prescribed in section 443.051(3)(b), F. S., the Department reports the court-ordered reemployment assistance withholding percentage.

(4) Maximum withholding percentage.

(a) The Department limits the reemployment assistance withholding percentage it reports to the Department of Economic Opportunity to no more than 50 percent of a parent's reemployment assistance.

(b)1. When a parent has more than one support order requiring withholding from reemployment assistance, the Department adds the withholding percentages from each of the orders and reports the combined withholding percentage to the Department of Economic Opportunity. For example, if a parent has two orders that each require withholding 20 percent from reemployment assistance, the total combined withholding percentage the Department reports for the parent is 40 percent.

2. When a parent has more than one support order requiring withholding from reemployment assistance and the combined withholding percentage exceeds 50 percent, the Department reports 50 percent as the withholding percentage. For example, if the parent has two support orders that each require withholding from reemployment assistance at a rate of 40 percent (totaling 80 percent), the Department reports 50 percent to the Department of Economic Opportunity as the parent's withholding percentage.

(5) Refunding collections that exceed the support obligation.

(a) If the withholding exceeds the parent's total support obligation, including any delinquencies, arrearages, and retroactive support, the Department shall refund the amount of the excess withholding to the parent.

(b) In addition to refunding excess withholding amounts, the Department shall calculate an adjusted withholding percentage that does not exceed the parent's support obligation and notify the Department of Economic Opportunity of the adjusted withholding percentage.

(c) If a subsequent reemployment assistance collection is withheld that exceeds the total support obligation as described in paragraph (5)(a) before the Department of Economic Opportunity implements the adjusted withholding percentage, the Department shall promptly refund the excess amount to the parent.

(6) To avoid withholding from reemployment assistance that exceeds the support obligation, the Department adjusts the withholding percentage when a parent who owes a support obligation contacts the Department if:

(a) The amount withheld exceeds the parent's support obligations, in which case the Department reduces the reemployment assistance withholding percentage to the highest percentage that does not exceed the support obligations;

(b) The parent is paying the entire amount of the support obligation by income deduction from an income source other than reemployment assistance, in which case the Department adjusts the reemployment assistance withholding percentage to zero; or

(c) The deductions from an income source other than reemployment assistance satisfy only part of the support obligation, in which case the Department adjusts the reemployment assistance withholding percentage to the highest percentage that does not exceed the support obligation taking into account the deductions from the other income source.

(7) Support obligations for more than one case. When a parent owes support obligations for more than one child support case, the Department allocates each reemployment assistance withholding collection among the parent's cases in the same proportion as the reemployment assistance withholding percentage for each of the parent's support obligations. The following examples illustrate the allocation method.

(a) Example 1. If a parent has support obligations in two cases that have the same reemployment assistance withholding percentage, the Department splits the collection evenly and allocates the same amount to each case.

(b) Example 2. If a parent has support obligations in three cases that all have the same withholding percentage, the Department splits the collection evenly and allocates the same amount to each case.

(c) Example 3. If a parent has support obligations in two cases, and the withholding percentage is 20 percent in the first case and 40 percent in the second case, the Department

allocates one-third of the collection to the first case and two-thirds of the collection to the second case.

(8) Payment receipts. The Department shall provide either parent with a record of reemployment assistance withholding collections upon request.

(9) Bankruptcy. When a Chapter 11, 12, or 13 bankruptcy case is filed for a parent who owes a support obligation and the Department receives the first reemployment assistance withholding collection before a bankruptcy plan is confirmed, withholding support from the parent's reemployment assistance continues until the bankruptcy plan is confirmed. Rulemaking Authority 409.2557 FS. Law Implemented 443.051 FS. History-New _____.

12E-1.039 – Request for Services

(1) Definitions. For purposes of this rule:

(a) "Public assistance recipient" means a person receiving temporary cash assistance under section 414.095 F.S., Medicaid under section 409.963 F.S., or food assistance under section 414.31 F.S.

(b) "Alleged father" means "putative father" as defined by section 409.256(1)(g) F.S., which is an individual who is or may be the biological father of a child whose paternity has not been established and whose mother was unmarried when the child was conceived and born.

(2) Services Provided. The Department establishes paternity; establishes, modifies, enforces, collects, and disburses support. The Department will initiate location activities to obtain address, asset, employment, health insurance, and personal identifying information in order to provide services.

(3) Eligibility.

(a) A parent, caregiver, or alleged father who has a need for services regarding a dependent child may apply for services.

(b) A public assistance recipient receiving temporary cash assistance or food assistance does not need to apply for services. A case is created automatically upon receipt of a referral from the Florida Department of Children and Families.

(c) A public assistance recipient receiving only Medicaid benefits must apply for services. A case is not automatically created.

(d) A former recipient of public assistance or child support services whose case has been closed and who wants the Department to resume services must complete an application.

(e) The Department provides services at the request of other states Title IV-D agencies, child support agencies from countries with which the State of Florida has a reciprocal agreement regarding child support, and to child support agencies or the equivalent in countries that have signed The

Hague Convention on the International Recovery of Child Support and Other Forms of Family Maintenance.

(f) The Department does not provide services to a minor child seeking to collect support from a parent.

(g) The Department does not provide services to an adult seeking to collect support from a parent for the time during which the adult seeking to collect support was a dependent.

(4) Application.

(a) To apply for services, an individual who does not receive temporary cash assistance or food assistance must submit a signed and complete electronic or paper application. The Department will obtain information concerning parents and children including: name, address, date of birth, Social Security Number, employment, health insurance, military service, and other relevant information necessary to provide child support services.

1. An individual may submit the Online Application for Child Support Services form CS-ES51b through the Department's Internet website at www.floridarevenue.com. Form CS-ES51b (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->

_____) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx. The Department will send an electronic confirmation message to the applicant once the application is processed and the case has been opened.

2. A hardcopy application may be obtained by calling 1-800-622-KIDS (5437) or contacting a child support local office. Local child support office information is provided on the Department's Internet website www.floridarevenue.com.

a. Upon request, the Department will provide an individual who requests services with Forms CS-ES51 and CS-ES50. Form CS-ES51, Application for Child Support Services, is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> _____). Form CS-ES50, Application Instructions, is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> _____). The applicant must complete and submit the CS-ES51 form provided.

b. When an applicant requests services for more than one child, the Department will provide the applicant an Additional Child Information, Form CS-ES51ACI, for each additional child. Form CS-ES51ACI (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-> _____) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx.

The applicant must complete and submit the CS-ES51ACI form(s) provided.

c. When there is more than one alleged father, the Department will provide the applicant a separate Additional Alleged Father, Form CS-ES52, for each alleged father. Form CS-ES52

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx. The applicant must complete and submit the CS-ES52 form(s) provided.

d. When the applicant is applying for services for more than one child with different fathers, the applicant will be required to submit a separate application for each child and father.

(5) Supporting documents; additional requirements.

(a) The applicant and public assistance recipient must:

1. Provide the Department all information necessary to process the request for services.

2. Provide the Department copies of all supporting documents, including: Final Judgment of Dissolution of Marriage, support order, birth certificate of child(ren) not born in Florida, paternity judgment, payment record, or written agreement between the applicant or public assistance recipient and the other parent concerning paternity, support, and parenting time, and other relevant documents necessary to provide child support services.

3. Provide a paternity declaration for each child who does not have a legal father.

(i) The Department uses the Paternity Declaration, Form CS-PO34, for the mother. Form CS-PO34 (<http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-06599>) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx.

(ii) The Department uses the Paternity Statement by Non-Parent, Form CS-PO102, for the non-parent caregiver. Form CS-PO102

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx.

(iii) The Department uses the Paternity Statement by Alleged Father, Form CS-PO103 for the alleged father. Form CS-PO103

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is incorporated herein by reference effective xx/xx.

4. Provide the Department proof of health insurance if the child(ren) is insured.

5. Inform the Department of any changes in information for himself or herself, the child(ren) or other parent(s). This includes addresses, employment, phone numbers, and where the child(ren) resides.

6. Voluntarily submit to personal jurisdiction in Florida.

7. Cooperate with the Department as required by Rule 12E-1.008, F.A.C.

(6) Application and Referral Review.

(a) The Department will review applications submitted by an individual who does not receive temporary cash assistance or food assistance to determine whether the application is complete.

1. If the applicant returns some, but not all required information, or returns incomplete or inaccurate information, the Department will send the applicant Form CS-ES54, Request for More Information, by regular mail, requesting the missing, incomplete, or corrected information. Form CS-ES54 is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____).

2. If the application is complete, the Department will send Form CS-ES55, Acknowledge Request for Services, to the applicant informing them the application was received. When additional information is required for the Department to proceed, the CS-ES55 will instruct the applicant to provide the required information within 30 days after the date of the notice. Form CS-ES55

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx.

3. The Department will close the request for services case if an application is not returned or completed within 65 calendar days after the Department begins the application review.

(b) The Department will review public assistance referrals received from the Florida Department of Children and Families to determine whether additional information or documents are required to provide services.

1. The Department will send the Information Needed to Provide Services, Form CS-ES56, to the public assistance recipient informing them a request to open a child support case was received and additional information is required for the Department to proceed. Form CS-ES56 (http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx.

2. The Department will provide the public assistance recipient Form CS-ES56ACI, Additional Children, if there is more than one child in the household. The public assistance recipient must complete and submit the CS-ES56ACI form(s) provided. Form CS-ES56ACI

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx.

3. The Department will provide the public assistance recipient Form CS-ES119, Additional Alleged Fathers, if there is more than one alleged father. The public assistance recipient must complete and submit the CS-ES119 form(s) provided. Form CS-ES119

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____) is hereby incorporated by reference effective xx/xx.

4. The Department will notify the Department of Children and Family Services in accordance with Section 409.2572, F.S., if the public assistance recipient fails to provide all required information.

Rulemaking Authority 409.2557(3)(h) and (i) FS. Law Implemented 409.2567 FS. History–New _____.

12E-1.040 – Intergovernmental Forms.

(1) As the state’s Title IV-D agency under section 409.2557(1), F.S., the Department must use federally approved forms in intergovernmental cases involving child support programs in other states, foreign countries, or tribes as required by 45 CFR 303.7(a)(4)

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____), which is hereby incorporated by reference in this rule effective xx/xx. Copies of the federally approved forms used in intergovernmental cases may be obtained from the federal Office of Child Support Enforcement on its website at: www.acf.hhs.gov.

(2) The Department uses the General Testimony (CS-IS21) form to obtain a sworn statement about the information and facts of the case from a person seeking establishment of paternity, support, or paternity and support in an intergovernmental case. The Department provides the CS-IS21 to the other government’s child support program. Form CS-IS21 (Effective xx/xx)

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____), is hereby incorporated by reference in this rule.

(3) The Department uses the Affidavit in Support of Establishing Paternity (CS-IS26) form to obtain a paternity affidavit from a person seeking establishment of paternity or paternity and support in an intergovernmental case. The Department provides the CS-IS26 to the other government’s child support program. Form CS-IS26 (Effective xx/xx)

(http://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref-_____), is hereby incorporated by reference in this rule.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Bobby York

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governor and Cabinet

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 23, 2017

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: March 28, 2017

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61G15-20.100 Certificates of Authorization

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The proposed new rule will mandate the process of applying for and changing information

relating to a Certificate of Authorization including creating an application form.

SUMMARY: Requirements of and application for a Certificate of Authorization.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 471.008, 471.033(2) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.015(7), 471.033 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Zana Raybon, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe Street, Suite B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303; (850)521-0500.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-20.100 Certificates of Authorization.

(1) Pursuant to section 471.023, Florida Statutes, the practice or offer to practice engineering or engineering services to the public through a business organization is permitted only if the business organization possesses a Certificate of Authorization issued by the Board. In addition, Certificates of Authorization must be renewed every two (2) years, and each business organization issued a Certificate of Authorization must notify the Board of any change in the name of the business organization or the business organization’s qualifying Professional Engineer within thirty (30) days of such change.

(2) Applications for an initial Certificate of Authorization or notification of the change of name of the business organization or of the qualifying Professional Engineer shall be made on Form FBPE/030, 04/17, Application for Certificate of Authorization, which is incorporated by reference herein and may be obtained from <https://fbpe.org/licensure/application-process/certificate-of-authorization/> or at <https://www.flrules.org/Gateway/reference.asp?No=Ref->. All applications must be accompanied by the fee as specified in Rule 61G15-24.001, F.A.C. Rulemaking Authority 471.008, 471.011(1), FS. Law Implemented 471.023, FS. History—New

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: April 12, 2017
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: May 17, 2017

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
61G15-21.001 Written Examination Designated; General Requirements

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the amendment is to update the rule.

SUMMARY: To update the rule.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 455.217(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 455.217(1), 471.015 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Zana Raybon, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe Street, Suite B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303; (850)521-0500.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-21.001 ~~Written~~ Examination Designated; General Requirements.

(1) Pursuant to sections 471.013 and 471.015(1), F.S., ~~The Florida Board of Engineers hereby determines that a written an~~ examination shall be given and passed prior to any applicant receiving a license to practice as a professional engineer, or becoming as an engineer intern in the State of Florida, except as provided in subsections Section 471.015(3) and (5), F.S. The examination shall be provided by the National Council of Examiners for Engineers and Surveyors (NCEES). ~~The examination consists of two parts, Part I, or the fundamentals examination, and Part II, or the principles and practices examination. After January 1, 2014, the fundamentals examination will be a computer-based examination rather than written.~~

(a) Part I of the examination provided by NCEES is the Fundamentals of Engineering examination.

(b) Part II of the examination provided by NCEES for all disciplines other than structural is the Principles and Practices of Engineering examination, and is given by discipline. ~~National examination security requirements as set forth by the NCEES shall be followed throughout the administration of the examination.~~

(c) For Part II of the examination ~~for structural engineering, in lieu of the Principles and Practices of Engineering examination,~~ an applicant can take the sixteen (16) hour Structural Engineering examination provided by NCEES. either the structural component of the civil engineering exam or can take the separate structural examination which is sixteen (16) hours, consisting of an eight (8) hour vertical forces component and eight (8) hour lateral forces component.

(2) National examination security requirements as established by the NCEES shall be followed throughout the administration of the examination.

(3)(2) Applicants for licensure by examination must be graduates of a Board-approved engineering program as defined in Rule 61G15-20.001(2), F.A.C. Acceptance into the fundamentals examination, either in Florida or elsewhere, does not indicate automatic acceptance for the principles and practice examination, nor does it exempt said applicant from meeting the licensure eligibility criteria set forth in Chapter 471, F.S. and Chapter 61G15, F.A.C.

Rulemaking Authority 455.217(1) FS. Law Implemented 455.217(1), 471.015 FS. History—New 1-8-80, Formerly 21H-21.01, Amended 10-5-92, Formerly 21H-21.001, Amended 11-15-94, 10-14-02, 3-9-04, 2-3-05, 2-2-12, 9-25-13,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers
NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: April 12, 2017
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: May 17, 2017

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Professional Engineers

RULE NO.: 61G15-35.004
RULE TITLE: Common Requirements to All Engineers Providing Threshold Building Inspection Services as Special Inspectors

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the amendment is to update the qualifications required to be an authorized representative of a Special Inspector.

SUMMARY: Update qualifications to be an authorized representative of a Special Inspector.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS AND LEGISLATIVE RATIFICATION:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the Agency.

The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: During discussion of the economic impact of this rule at its Board meeting, the Board, based upon the expertise and experience of its members, determined that a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs (SERC) was not necessary and that the rule will not require ratification by the Legislature. No

person or interested party submitted additional information regarding the economic impact at that time.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

RULEMAKING AUTHORITY: 471.008 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.015(7) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE SCHEDULED AND ANNOUNCED IN THE FAR.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Zana Raybon, Executive Director, Board of Professional Engineers, 2639 North Monroe Street, Suite B-112, Tallahassee, FL 32303; (850)521-0500.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

61G15-35.004 Common Requirements to All Engineers Providing Threshold Building Inspection Services as Special Inspectors.

(1) No change.

(2) Special Inspectors utilizing Authorized Representatives shall ensure the Authorized Representative is qualified by education, licensure, or training to perform the duties assigned by the Special Inspector. Effective July 1, 2016, those qualifications shall include:

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) Possess current certification(s) in the following area(s) at the time of submission of the Threshold Building Affidavit;

1. If inspecting ~~Prior to inspection of~~ concrete components, certification from the American Concrete Institute (ACI) in concrete construction special inspection pursuant to the qualifications of such certification established by ACI on January 1, 2017~~3~~;

2. If inspecting ~~Prior to inspection of~~ masonry components, certification from the International Code Council (ICC) in structural masonry special inspection pursuant to the qualifications for such certification established by ICC on January 1, 2017~~3~~;

3. If inspecting ~~Prior to inspection of~~ post-tensioned components, certification from the Post-Tensioning Institute (PTI) in post-tensioning inspection pursuant to the qualifications for such certification established by PTI on January 1, 2017~~3~~;

4. If inspecting ~~Prior to inspection of~~ structural steel components, certification from the International Code Council or American Institute of Steel Construction (AISC) in structural steel special inspection pursuant to the qualifications for such certification established by ICC on January 1, 2013 or AISC on January 1, 2017~~3~~;

5. ~~If inspecting~~ ~~Prior to inspection~~ of soil related components, certification from the International Code Council in basic soil special inspection pursuant to the qualifications for such certification established by ICC on January 1, 2017~~3~~.

(3) through (4) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 471.008 FS. Law Implemented 471.015(7) FS. History--New 3-21-01, Amended 4-5-04, 5-6-09, 2-4-13, 12-23-15,

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Board of Professional Engineers

NAME OF AGENCY HEAD WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Board of Professional Engineers

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: April 12, 2017

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAR: May 17, 2017

Section III

Notice of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

RULE NO.: 61-38.001
RULE TITLE: Florida Standard for Mitigation of Radon in Existing Buildings
NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 43 No. 105, May 31, 2017 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

The Summary of the Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs ("SERC") approved by the agency is corrected to state:

The Agency has determined that this will not have an adverse impact on small business or likely increase directly or indirectly regulatory costs in excess of \$200,000 in the aggregate within one year after the implementation of the rule. A SERC has not been prepared by the agency. The Agency has determined that the proposed rule is not expected to require legislative ratification based on the statement of estimated regulatory costs or if no SERC is required, the information expressly relied upon and described herein: the economic review conducted by the Agency. Any person who wishes to provide information regarding a statement of estimated regulatory costs, or provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B8-45.002
RULE TITLE: Continuing Education Approval
NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 41 No. 182, September 18, 2015 issue of the Florida Administrative Register has been withdrawn.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Agency for Persons with Disabilities

RULE NO.: 65G-2.008
RULE TITLE: Staffing Requirements
NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 43 No. 43, March 3, 2017 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

65G-2.008 Staffing Requirements.

(1) The licensee shall employ adequate staff to maintain the facility in a manner that promotes and ensures the health, safety, and welfare of residents, and protects those who are not residents of the facility from any known dangerous behaviors that the residents exhibit. A violation of this subsection shall constitute a Class I violation.

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) Prior to beginning employment, direct service providers must have at least one year of experience in a medical, psychiatric, nursing or childcare setting or working with persons with a developmental disability. Successfully completed college, vocational or technical training equal to 30 semester hours, 45 quarter hours, or 720 classroom hours in special education, mental health, counseling, guidance, social work or health and rehabilitative services can substitute for the required experience. Direct service providers hired by the licensee prior to July 1, 2014, ~~the adoption date of this rule~~ shall continue to be exempt from this paragraph requirement. Licensees may allow direct service providers to begin their employment without meeting the experience requirements described within this section if such direct service providers spend their first 90 days of employment working directly under the supervision or oversight of another direct service provider who does possess the required experience requirements. For purposes of this section, "direct supervision or oversight" refers to the physical presence of a direct service provider who meets the experience requirements and who is immediately available for assistance as needed and who at all times shall be under the same contiguous roof line as the direct service provider who does not meet the one year experience requirement. The direct service provider who does not meet the one year experience requirement may take residents out of

the facility only if accompanied by another direct service provider who meets the one-year experience requirement as long as the experienced direct service provider remains at all times within 100 feet of the direct service provider who does not meet the one year experience requirement working directly under the supervision or oversight requires the physical presence of the experienced direct service provider who at all times shall be within 50 feet of the direct service provider who is subject to supervision to readily assist and direct. If such arrangements will be made for a direct service provider, the licensee shall provide written notification to the Regional Office, to include the name of the direct service provider and the facility in which he or she will be working, no later than five business days after the direct service provider starts employment with the licensee. The licensee shall conduct a performance evaluation of any direct service provider employed under the exception to the experience requirement of this paragraph no later than 120 days after the direct service provider began his or her employment with the licensee. This performance evaluation shall, at a minimum, include an assessment of the direct service provider's ability to perform the prescribed duties of his or her position. Documentation of this performance evaluation shall be maintained within the personnel file of the direct service provider and made available to the Agency upon request. A violation of this paragraph shall constitute a Class III violation.

(g) through (h) No change.

(2) through (7) No change.

Rulemaking Authority 393.501(1), 393.067 FS. Law Implemented 393.0655, 393.067 FS. History—New 7-1-14.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

OIR – Insurance Regulation

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
69O-196.015 Forms Incorporated by Reference
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 43 No. 97, May 18, 2017 issue of the Florida Administrative Register.

69O-196.015 Forms Incorporated by Reference.

The following forms are incorporated into this rule chapter by reference to implement the provisions of Chapter 627, Part XV, F.S.:

Title	Form Number
(1) Application for License to Conduct Business in the State of Florida as a Premium Finance Company	OIR-99 (10/94)
(a) Application for Certificate of Authority Premium Finance Company	OIR-979 (10/94)

(1)(a) (b) Instructions for Application Application For License Premium Finance Company	OIR-C1-958 (5/2013) (6/95)
(c) Checklist for Application	OIR-972 (6/95)
(d) Request for Payment of Application Fees	OIR-971 (10/94)
(b)(e) Management Information Form	OIR-844 (10/91)
(c)(f) Listing of Stockholders	OIR-973 (10/91)
(d)(g) Instructions for Statutory Compliance of Forms	OIR-957 (6/95)
(2) Annual Report	OIR-A1-107 (11/97)
(3) Bond	OIR-453 (6/95)
(4) Authority to Release Information	OIR-450 (6/95)
(5) Biographical Statement and Affidavit	OIR-422 (11/90)
(6) Personal Financial Statement	OIR-454 (5/89)
(7) Fingerprint Card Instructions	OIR-938 (4/91)
(8) Request for Payment of Fingerprint Charges	OIR-903 (1/94)
(9) Instructions for Furnishing Background Investigation Reports	OIR-905 (9/94)
(10) Application for Acquisition of a Premium Finance Company	OIR-448 (12/91)
(a) Consent and Agreement in Re Service of Process	OIR-144 (11/90)
(b) Resolution Form	OIR-514 (11/90)
(11) Statement of Account	OIR-970 (10/91)

~~These forms shall become effective on the date this rule becomes effective. Forms are available at <http://www.flor.com/iportal>. Copies of the forms may be obtained from the Office of Insurance Regulation, Bureau of Specialty Insurers, Larson Building, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0331.~~

Rulemaking Specific Authority 624.308 FS. Law Implemented 624.321(1)(a), 624.424, 627.828, 627.829, 627.836, 627.845, 628.4615 FS. History—New 5-28-90, Formerly 4-18.015, Amended 7-27-95, 8-29-99, Formerly 4-196.015 Amended _____.

Section IV
Emergency Rules

NONE

Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule
Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL
REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-1.004 General Sanitation and Safety Requirements

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on May 31, 2017, the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, received a petition for a Routine Variance for paragraph 61C-1.004(1)(a), Florida Administrative Code, and Section 5-203.13, 2009 FDA Food Code from Chefs on the Run Corp. located in Homestead. The above referenced F.A.C. addresses the requirement that at least one service sink is provided for the cleaning of mops or similar cleaning tools and the disposal of mop water. They are requesting to share the mop sink located within an adjacent business.

The Division of Hotels and Restaurants will accept comments concerning the Petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received before 5:00 p.m.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Daisy.Aleman@myfloridalicense.com, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1011.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Optometry

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on May 24, 2017, the Board of Optometry received a petition for emergency waiver filed by Thu Pham, Esq., on behalf of Yartz Flores, O.D., from subsections 64B13-4.001(1) and (2), F.A.C., providing that the Florida licensure examination consists of four (4) parts. Petitioner requests the Board waive provisions of the rule such that Petitioner may be eligible for licensure upon passage of Part IV only. At a special board meeting held May 31, 2017, the Board determined the situation presented by

Petitioner was not an emergency, and determined the Petition would be reviewed by the Board on a non-emergency basis. Comments on this petition should be filed with the Board of Optometry, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3255, (850)488-0595 or by email: Anthony.Spivey@flhealth.gov, within 14 days of publication of this notice.

A copy of the Petition for Variance or Waiver may be obtained by contacting: Dr. Anthony Spivey, Executive Director, Board of Optometry, at the above address.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Pharmacy

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

64B16-26.300 Consultant Pharmacist Licensure

The Board of Pharmacy hereby gives notice that the petition for variance or waiver filed on April 13, 2017, by Tevieca Andrews Johnson, PharmD, CPh, on behalf of Kethura S. Pullins, PharmD, seeking a variance or waiver of the requirement of paragraph 64B16-26.300(4)(a), Florida Administrative Code, has been withdrawn.

A copy of the Order or additional information may be obtained by contacting: C. Erica White, Executive Director, Board of Pharmacy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C04, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3254 or at info@Floridaspharmacy.gov.

Section VI

Notice of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Aquaculture

The Florida Aquaculture Review Council announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, June 21, 2017, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Jim Heidegger Auditorium/Cowperthwaite Bldg., 3027 Lake Alfred Road, Winter Haven, FL 33881; teleconference access dial: 1(888)670-3525, enter participant code: 4457172323#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To discuss issues affecting the growth of aquaculture in the state of Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Serina Rocco, Environmental Administrator or Charlie Culpepper, Biological Administrator, at (850)617-7600.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 2 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Serina Rocco, Environmental Administrator, or Charlie Culpepper, Biological Administrator, at (850)617-7600. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

The Florida Rehabilitation Council for the Blind and the Division of Blind Services announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: June 6, 2017, 3:00 p.m. – 6:00 p.m.

PLACE: Telephone conference number: 1(877)809-7262, participant code: 24652868#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

This notice is a correction to the notice published in Vol. 43, No. 105, F.A.R. **The teleconference phone number and participant code has changed to the following: telephone conference number: 1(877)809-7262, participant code: 24652868#.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Division of Blind Services, 325 West Gaines Street, Turlington Building Room 1114, Tallahassee, FL 32399; Selena Sickler, (850)245-0329, Selena.Sickler@dbs.fldoe.org. For more information, you may contact: The Division of Blind Services, 325 West Gaines Street, Turlington Building Room 1114, Tallahassee, FL 32399; Selena Sickler, (850)245-0329, Selena.Sickler@dbs.fldoe.org.

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

The Criminal and Juvenile Justice Information Systems (CJJIS) Council announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, July 7, 2017, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference call

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

The CJJIS Council Communications Committee will discuss ideas for improving Council outreach.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: brendaboyd@fdle.state.fl.us.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: brendaboyd@fdle.state.fl.us. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: brendaboyd@fdle.state.fl.us.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

Florida Prepaid College Board

The Florida Prepaid College Board announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, June 5, 2017, 2:00 p.m., ET.

PLACE: The Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32308; telephone conference: 1(646)749-3122, access code: 734-255-125

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

The purpose of the Solicitation Conference is to review the ITN with interested parties so that areas of misunderstanding or ambiguity are clarified.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: The Florida Prepaid College Board, ITN Administrator by email at ITNinfo.PrePaid@MyFloridaPrepaid.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: The Florida Prepaid College Board. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

The Florida Commission on Community Service (Volunteer Florida) announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: June 16, 2017, 2:00 p.m., ET until all business is complete

PLACE: Telephone conference: number: 1(888)670-3525, participant code: 3360784946#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

General Business.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Aly Simons, (850)414-7400.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 3 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Aly Simons, (850)414-7400. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence from which the appeal is to be issued.

For more information, you may contact: Aly Simons, (850)414-7400.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Division of Hotels and Restaurants

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

61C-5.001 Safety Standards

The Department of Business and Professional Regulation announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: UPDATE: June 13, 2017, 2:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Room, N-109, North Tower, 400 W. Robinson St., Orlando, FL; conference call: 1(888)670-3525, participant code: 2152927883#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
The Elevator Safety Technical Advisory Council will meet to discuss issues pertaining to elevator safety within the State of Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: latosha.jones@myfloridalicense.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: latosha.jones@myfloridalicense.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: latosha.jones@myfloridalicense.com.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Department of Environmental Protection announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: June 19, 2017, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: Marriott Courtyard Residence Inn Miami West/FL Turnpike, 11580 NW 105 Street, Miami, Florida 33178

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To obtain public comments on the draft injection well permit for Countyline 2 LLC, who applied on March 1, 2017, for a permit to construct an injection well (File No. 0351735-001-UC/II, WACS 103281). The project is located at Countyline Corporate Park, 15400 Northwest 97th Avenue, Hialeah, Florida 33018, and will consist of one injection well to a total depth of 3,500 feet below land surface. The injection well will be used for the disposal of extraction water from a closed construction and debris landfill.

During the public comment period provided in Rule 62-528.315, F.A.C., any interested person may submit written comments on the draft permit. All comments shall be considered in making the final decision and shall be answered as provided in Rule 62-528.330, F.A.C. More information or a copy of the draft permit, fact sheet, and application may be obtained by contacting: Neil Campbell, DEP, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS 3530, Tallahassee, Florida 32299-2400, (850)245-8612.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Toni Lomen at (904)256-1637. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Dentistry

The Board of Dentistry announces a telephone conference call to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: July 11, 2017, 6:00 p.m., ET

PLACE: Conference call: dial: 1(888)670-3525, when prompted enter conference code: 4552635641#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:
Anesthesia Committee Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained at www.floridasdentistry.gov. If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter

considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made. Those who are hearing impaired, using TDD equipment can call the Florida Telephone Relay System at 1(800)955-8771. Persons requiring special accommodations due to disability or physical impairment should contact: the Board Office at (850)245-4474.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILIES

Mental Health Program

The Department of Children and Families announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: June 15, 2017, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Children & Families, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Conference Room A, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0700

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Suicide Prevention.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Sofia Castro at sindie.castro@myflfamilies.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Sofia Castro. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Sofia Castro at sindie.castro@myflfamilies.com.

DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Division of State Fire Marshal

The Fire & Emergency Incident Information System Technical Advisory Panel announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, July 14, 2017, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Sanibel Harbour Marriott Resort & Spa, Fort Myers, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Regular meeting. Topics to include a Division update, FFIRS update and EMS update.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to

participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 10 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: MaryAnn.Benson@MyFloridaCFO.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

INVITATION TO NEGOTIATE (ITN)

18-ITN-001-BM – Appeals Digital Recording Solution Services

The Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) announces public meetings to which all persons are invited, related to 18-ITN-001-BM for Appeals Digital Recording Solution Services. DEO will hold Negotiation Team Meetings at a date and time to be determined later, and advertised in the Vendor Bid System, as set forth below. The Negotiation Team Meetings will not be open to the public, but each Negotiation Team Meeting will be recorded and released in accordance with section 286.0113, Florida Statutes.

PUBLIC MEETINGS:

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, August 15, 2017, 2017, 3:00 p.m., ET

PLACE: Caldwell Building, 107 East Madison Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Notice of Intent to Negotiate

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, September 12, 2017, 3:00 p.m., ET

PLACE: Caldwell Building, 107 East Madison Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0950

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Intent to Award Recommendation.

In accordance with section 120.525 Florida Statutes, public meetings for Invitation to Negotiate 18-ITN-001-BM, RA Appeals Digital Recording Solution Services are hereby noticed. DEO's Invitation to Negotiate seeks replies to develop and implement an integrated Reemployment Assistance (RA) business management digital Appeals recording solution which provides the business area with a viable solution to capture and maintain hearing recordings on disputed claims for reemployment assistance benefits. This solution will be integrated with the existing Reemployment Assistance System (CONNECT) that is currently owned and maintained by DEO. The replies can either leverage the existing Genesys system which currently records calls from

claimants, employers, and Third Party representatives or be a stand-alone system. The Department reserves the right to issue amendments, addenda, and changes to this timeline and specifically to the meeting notices listed above. Notice of any change will be posted within the Vendor Bid System (VBS) in accordance with Section 287.042(3), Florida Statutes, and will not be re-advertised in the Florida Administrative Register (F.A.R.). The VBS can be accessed at: http://vbs.dms.state.fl.us/vbs/main_menu.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Blake McGough at (850)245-7443, blake.mcgough@deo.myflorida.com or Vince McKenzie at (850)245-7463, vincent.mckenzie@deo.myflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Blake McGough at (850)245-7443, blake.mcgough@deo.myflorida.com or Vince McKenzie at (850)245-7463, vincent.mckenzie@deo.myflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

CITIZENS PROPERTY INSURANCE CORPORATION

The Citizens Property Insurance Corporation Claims Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, June 15, 2017, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference call: 1(866)361-7525, conference ID: 5219676193#

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Business before the Claims Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained at Citizens' website: www.citizensfla.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 5 days before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Barbara Walker, (850)513-3744, 2101 Maryland Circle, Tallahassee, FL 32303, barbara.walker@citizensfla.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Barbara Walker, (850)513-3744, 2101 Maryland Circle, Tallahassee, FL 32303, barbara.walker@citizensfla.com.

ENTERPRISE FLORIDA, INC.

The Florida Defense Support Task Force announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, June 15, 2017, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m., Eastern Time

PLACE: Conference call: phone number 1(800)501-8979, access code 1869945

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: This meeting will discuss proposed actions that will assist in preserving, protecting and enhancing Florida's military installations and missions.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Michelle Griggs, (850)298-6640, mgriggs@enterpriseflorida.com.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this workshop/meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 1 day before the workshop/meeting by contacting: Michelle Griggs, (850)298-6640, mgriggs@enterpriseflorida.com. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency using the Florida Relay Service, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

For more information, you may contact: Terry McCaffrey, (850)878-4578, tmccaffrey@enterpriseflorida.com.

Section VII

Notice of Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Declaratory Statements

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:

33-602.101 Care of Inmates

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Corrections has issued an order disposing of the petition for declaratory statement filed by inmate Francisco Pereira, DC# M06039 on April 11, 2017. The following is a summary of the agency's disposition of the petition:

As an inmate of the Florida Department of Corrections, Francisco Pereira, DC# M06039, may only participate in administrative proceedings that are brought pursuant to Sections 120.54(3)(c) and (7), Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 120.81(3), Florida Statutes, the Petitioner lacks standing to bring a Petition for Declaratory Statement, and the Department lacks jurisdiction to issue a declaratory statement in this case.

A copy of the Order Disposing of the Petition for Declaratory Statement may be obtained by contacting: Betty Money, 501 South Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, betty.money@fdc.myflorida.com, (850)717-3605.

Section VIII
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

NONE

Section IX
Notice of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY (DEO)
 DEO SOLICITATION NO. 18-ITN-001-BM Appeals Digital Recording Solution Services

NOTICE OF Invitation to negotiate: On behalf of the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO), the Procurement Office is soliciting formal, competitive, sealed replies for solicitation number 18-ITN-001-BM, to develop and implement an integrated Reemployment Assistance (RA) business management digital Appeals recording solution which provides the business area with a viable solution to capture and maintain hearing recordings on disputed claims for reemployment assistance benefits. This solution will be integrated with the existing Reemployment Assistance System (CONNECT) that is currently owned and maintained by DEO. The replies can either leverage the existing Genesys system

which currently records calls from claimants, employers, and Third Party representatives or be a stand-alone system. The Department will post notice of any changes or additional meeting(s) on the Vendor Bid System (VBS) in accordance with Section 287.042(3), Florida Statutes, and will not re-advertise any notice in the Florida Administrative Register (FAR). Access the VBS at http://www.myflorida.com/apps/vbs/vbs_www.main_menu.

AULD & WHITE CONSTRUCTORS, LLC
 Ft. Caroline Middle School Classroom Renovation
NOTICE TO SUBCONTRACTORS
FORT CAROLINE MIDDLE SCHOOL NO. 238
IB/STEAM CLASSROOM RENOVATIONS
REQUEST FOR BIDS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Auld & White Constructors, LLC, in conjunction with the Duval County Public Schools will be accepting proposals, which will be received until 2:00 p.m., June 7, 2017, at Auld & White Constructors, LLC, 4168 Southpoint Parkway, Suite 101, Jacksonville, Florida 32216, for the referenced project.

SCOPE DESCRIPTION:

Fort Caroline Middle School No. 238 Room 35 Classroom Renovations. Remodeling of Room 35 to include demo, doors & hardware, drywall, ACT, paint, floor base, acoustical ceiling panels, signage and HVAC and electrical upgrades for Room 35 and adjacent spaces.

Interested Bidders are required to notify Auld & White Constructors, LLC, of their Intent to Bid, in writing, no later than 2:00 p.m., June 7, 2017. Project drawings and specifications will be available at Auld & White Constructors, LLC, 4168 Southpoint Parkway, Suite 101, Jacksonville, Florida 32216 as well as online at www.auld-whitebids.com. All interested bidders shall submit their Notice of Intent to Bid Attention Patrice Dickman or email at pdickman@auld-white.com.

Duval County Public Schools and Auld & White Constructors, LLC are committed to provide equal opportunity and strongly encourage all interested M/WBE and small business firms and suppliers to submit bids.

Auld & White Constructors, LLC reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive formalities and irregularities in bidding and to accept bids, which are considered by Auld & White Constructors, LLC to be in the best interest of the project.

TAMPA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
 Hillsborough County Aviation Authority
HILLSBOROUGH COUNTY AVIATION AUTHORITY
(AUTHORITY)
 RFQ No. 17-411-806, Project No. 8830 17
 Demolition of Red Side Rental Car Garage and Airside D Shuttle Guideway

Sealed proposals for Demolition of Red Side Rental Car Garage and Airside D Shuttle Guideway will be received from firms by the Authority at Tampa International Airport Offices located at 4160 George J. Bean Parkway, Administrative Offices Building, Suite 2400, Tampa, Florida 33607.

Solicitation documents and detailed requirements will be available on the Tampa International Airport website at www.tampaairport.com, Learn about TPA > Airport Business > Procurement Department > Current Solicitation Opportunities on June 1, 2017.

**Section XII
Miscellaneous**

Miscellaneous

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Index of Administrative Rules Filed
with the Secretary of State

Pursuant to Section 120.55(1)(b)6. – 7., F.S., the below list of rules were filed in the Office of the Secretary of State between 8:00 a.m., Thursday May 25, 2017 and 3:00 p.m., Wednesday May 31, 2017. An improved electronic publication system is forthcoming on the Florida Administrative Rules website, FLRules.org, which will accommodate complete publication of rules filed for adoption in the previous 7 days, including rules awaiting legislative action.

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
6A-1.0451	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-1.09430	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-1.09441	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-6.03020	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-10.033	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-10.0381	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-10.051	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-10.052	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-10.053	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
6A-14.030	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
+53ER17-31	5/25/2017	5/25/2017
59A-11.004	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
59G-6.035	5/26/2017	6/15/2017

61G6-10.002	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
63N-1.0081	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
64B2-11.001	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
64B9-15.0095	5/31/2017	6/20/2017
64B16-26.351	5/30/2017	6/19/2017
65C-15.036	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
65C-28.018	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
68B-5.003	5/26/2017	6/15/2017
68B-14.0036	5/30/2017	5/30/2017
68B-14.005	5/30/2017	5/30/2017

**LIST OF RULES AWAITING LEGISLATIVE
APPROVAL SECTIONS 120.541(3), 373.139(7)
AND/OR 373.1391(6), FLORIDA STATUTES**

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date
58M-2.009	2/9/2017	**/**/****
60FF1-5.009	7/21/2016	**/**/****
64B8-9.009	6/15/2016	**/**/****
64B8-10.003	12/9/2015	**/**/****
69L-7.100	12/19/2016	**/**/****
69L-7.501	12/19/2016	**/**/****

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY

Division of Community Development

Final Order No. DEO-17-139

In re: A LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATION

ADOPTED BY ISLAMORADA, VILLAGE OF
ISLANDS, FLORIDA, ORDINANCE NO. 17-05

FINAL ORDER

APPROVING ISLAMORADA ORDINANCE NO. 17-05

The Department of Economic Opportunity (“Department”) hereby issues its Final Order, pursuant to sections 380.05(6) and 380.0552(9), Florida Statutes, approving land development regulations adopted by the Islamorada, Village of Islands, Florida, Ordinance No. 17-05 (the “Ordinance”).

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Florida Keys Area is designated by section 380.0552, Florida Statutes, as an area of critical state concern.

Islamorada, Village of Islands, is a local government within the Florida Keys Area.

2. The Ordinance was adopted by Islamorada, Village of Islands, on March 30, 2017, and rendered to the Department on May 6, 2017.

3. The Ordinance amends the Islamorada, Village of Islands, Code of Ordinances to amend the conditions for fences and physical barriers in the Conservation zoning district.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

4. The Department is required to approve or reject land development regulations that are adopted by any local government in an area of critical state concern. See sections 380.05(6) and 380.0552(9), Florida Statutes.

5. Islamorada, Village of Islands, is a local government within the Florida Keys Area of Critical State Concern. See section 380.0552, Fla. Stat.

6. "Land development regulations" include local zoning, subdivision, building, and other regulations controlling the development of land. Section 380.031(8), Florida Statutes. The regulations adopted by the Ordinance are land development regulations.

7. The Ordinance is consistent with the Islamorada, Village of Islands, Comprehensive Plan generally, and specifically Policy 1-1.1.2, as required by section 163.3177(1), Florida Statutes.

8. All land development regulations enacted, amended, or rescinded within an area of critical state concern must also be consistent with the principles for guiding development for that area. See sections 380.05(6) and 380.0552(9), Florida Statutes. The Principles for Guiding Development for the Florida Keys Area of Critical State Concern are set forth in section 380.0552(7), Florida Statutes.

9. The Ordinance is consistent with the Principles for Guiding Development, as a whole, and is specifically consistent with the following Principles:

(a) Strengthening local government capabilities for managing land use and development so that local government is able to achieve these objectives without continuing the area of critical state concern designation.

(h) Protecting the value, efficiency, cost-effectiveness, and amortized life of existing and proposed major public investments, including:

5. Transportation facilities.

(k) Limiting the adverse impacts of public investments on the environmental resources of the Florida Keys.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that the Department finds that the Islamorada, Village of Islands, Ordinance No. 17-05 is consistent with the Islamorada, Village of Islands, Comprehensive Plan and the Principles for Guiding Development for the Florida Keys Area of Critical State Concern and is hereby APPROVED.

This Order becomes effective 21 days after publication in the Florida Administrative Register unless a petition is timely filed as described in the Notice of Administrative Rights below.

DONE AND ORDERED in Tallahassee, Florida.

/s/ _____

James D. Stansbury, Bureau Chief
Bureau of Community Planning and Growth
Department of Economic Opportunity

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RIGHTS

ANY PERSON WHOSE SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER HAS THE OPPORTUNITY FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.569, FLORIDA STATUTES.

FOR THE REQUIRED CONTENTS OF A PETITION CHALLENGING AGENCY ACTION, REFER TO RULES 28-106.104(2), 28-106.201(2), AND 28-106.301, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

DEPENDING ON WHETHER OR NOT MATERIAL FACTS ARE DISPUTED IN THE PETITION, A HEARING WILL BE CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO EITHER SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(1), FLORIDA STATUTES, OR SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(2), FLORIDA STATUTES. MEDIATION IS NOT AVAILABLE.

ANY PETITION MUST BE FILED WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY WITHIN 21 CALENDAR DAYS OF THE FINAL ORDER BEING PUBLISHED IN THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER. A PETITION IS FILED WHEN IT IS RECEIVED BY:

AGENCY CLERK
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY
OFFICE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL
107 EAST MADISON ST., MSC 110
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-4128
FAX (850)921-3230

YOU WAIVE THE RIGHT TO ANY ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING IF YOU DO NOT FILE A PETITION WITH THE AGENCY CLERK WITHIN 21 CALENDAR DAYS OF THE FINAL ORDER BEING PUBLISHED IN THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE REGISTER.

CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the original of the foregoing Final Order has been filed with the undersigned designated Agency Clerk, and that true and correct copies have been furnished to the following persons by the methods indicated this 31st day of May, 2017.

/s/ _____

Agency Clerk
Department of Economic Opportunity
107 East Madison Street, MSC 110

Tallahassee, FL 32399-4128

By Certified U.S. Mail:

The Honorable Deb Gillis, Mayor
Islamorada, Village of Islands Council
86800 Overseas Highway
Islamorada, FL 33036

Kelly Toth, Clerk
Islamorada, Village of Islands
86800 Overseas Highway
Islamorada, FL 33036

Cheryl Cioffari
Director of Planning
86800 Overseas Highway
Islamorada, FL 33036

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding
Week

NOTE: The above section will be published on Tuesday beginning October 2, 2012, unless Monday is a holiday, then it will be published on Wednesday of that week.
